
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, AUGUST 10, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Merizio Property Rezoning Request.

2. Pitt County Shrine Club Rezoning Request.

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ June 8, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes; and
➢ June 29, 2020 Special Called Meeting Minutes.

2. Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance Proposed Amendments: Set Public
Hearing.

3. Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 – Annexation: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency
of Annexation.

4. Budget Amendment: 2020-2021-01.



IX. OLD BUSINESS:

1. Draft Anti-Racism Message.

2. Draft Human Relations Council.

3. 2020 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project: Engineering Services.

4. 2020 Street Improvements Project – Milton Drive: Milton Drive Reconstruction

X. NEW BUSINESS:

1. BS&A Software ERP System Contract.

2. General Consulting Services – Engineering: The Wooten Company.

3. Knuckleboom Truck Replacement Grant Acceptance.

XI. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

XII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XIII. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

❖ Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP)
❖ Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS)
❖ New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS)
❖ Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ)
❖ Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ)
❖ Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW)
❖ Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW)
❖ 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW)
❖ Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW)
❖ Cemetery (BW)

XIV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, August 17, 2020 at 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room.

2. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, August 18, 2020 at 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly
Room.

3. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, August 25, 2020 at 6:30 pm.

4. Town Office closed on Monday, September 7, 2020 for the Labor Day Holiday.

XV. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVI. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Merizio Property – Rezoning Request (3018 Church Street Ext – parcel 68782). 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent Property 
Owners, Advertised Notice, Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Patricia Merizio. 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road. 

Parcel Number: 68782. 

Site Data: 1.36 Acres. 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

Proposed Zoning District: General Business (GB). 

• Planning and Zoning Board recommended (7-1 vote) approval of the request at the May 18,

2020 meeting.

• Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the Public Hearing on July 29, 2020.

• Notification was posted on the site on March 4, 2020.

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

3



4



5



6



REZONING LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

FOR 

PATRICIA MERIZIO 

Beginning at a point located in the centerline intersection of SR 1718 – Park Road and 
SR 1714 – Church Street Extension thence N 14-12-29 E, 1,215.50 feet to an existing 
magnetic nail located in the centerline of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension; thence 
leaving the centerline of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension N 76-21-06 W, 30.21 feet to 
an existing iron pipe located on the western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street 
Extension the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence from said point of beginning and leaving 
the western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension N 76-20-57 W, 241.20 
feet to an existing iron pipe; thence N 13-39-03 E, 325.16 feet to an iron pipe set; thence 
continuing N 13-39-03 E, 14.99 feet to a point located in a +-25 foot ditch; thence running 
along a +-25 foot ditch S 36-35-43 E, 345.34 feet to an existing re-bar located on the 
western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension; thence running along the 
western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension the following courses and 
distances S 26-41-26 W, 65.84 feet to a point; thence S 23-36-49 W, 51.58 feet to the 
point of beginning containing 1.364 acres. 

7



2571 Railroad Street   Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459  Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590     www.wintervillenc.com 

Town Council  

Rezoning Request 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, August 10, 

2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room (**Due to COVID-19 social distancing will be in place) at 

2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public Hearing on the following proposal: 

Patricia Merizio has submitted a proposal to rezone Parcel 68782 (3018 Church Street Ext) from Agricultural-

Residential (AR) to General Business (GB).  Per the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, the purpose of the General 

Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that serve the traveling public, require large amounts 

of land for display and parking, and are not oriented to the pedestrian shopper. 

Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town Tall and 

are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the Winterville Planning 

Department at (252) 215-2358. 

**Due to COVID-19 and the need for social distancing, persons having an interest in this matter and desiring to 

speak either for or against the requested rezoning are encouraged to submit written comments. You can email 

those comments to bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or mail them to Town of Winterville, ATTN: Planning 

Department, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590. Otherwise, please monitor the website for options on 

the opportunity to be heard during the meeting. For further information, contact the Winterville Planning 

Department at (252) 215-2358. 

8



 

WLH Development, LLC 
237 Churchhill Drive 
Greenville, NC 27858 

Charles Vernon White 
139 Vernon White Road 
Winterville, NC 28590 

Happy Trail Farms, LLC 
PO Box 1863 
Greenville, NC 27835 

 

Mahmoud Atiyha 
940 Van Gert Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590  

Carolina Eastern Homes, LLC 
PO Box 235 
Morehead City, NC 28577  

Caviness and Cates Building and 
Development Co of Greenville 
639 Executive Pl STE 400 
Fayetteville, NC 28305 

Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate 
Holdings INC 
300 South Building CN 1000 
Chapel Hill, NC 27599 

Bobby H Allen Life Estate 
3107 Church Street Ext 
Winterville, NC 28590 

Franklin R Fields 
2947 Church Street Ext 
Winterville, NC 28590 

Pitt County Shrine Club Holding 
Corporation 
PL Box 1845 
Winterville NC 28590 

MAILED ON  
7/29/2020 
____________ 

9



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, August 10, 2020 
at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room (**Due to COVID-19 social distancing will be in place) at 
2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public Hearing on the following proposal: 

Patricia Merizio has submitted a proposal to rezone Parcel 68782 (3018 Church Street Ext) from 
Agricultural-Residential (AR) to General Business (GB). Per the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, the 
purpose of the General Business District (GB) is to accommodate those business that serve the 
traveling public, require large amounts of land for display and parking, and are not oriented to the 
pedestrian shopper. 

Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Hall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 

**Due to COVID-19 and the need for social distancing, persons having an interest in this matter and 
desiring to speak either for or against the requested rezoning are encouraged to submit written 
comments. You can email those comments to bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or mail them to Town 
of Winterville, ATTN: Planning Department, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590. Otherwise, 
please monitor the website for options on the opportunity to be heard during the meeting. For further 
information, contact the Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 

Notes to Publisher: 

Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521

Subject: Winterville Pubic Hearing – Merizio Property Rezoning. 

Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Thursday, July 30, 2020 and 
Thursday, August 6, 2020. Should you have any questions please contact me. 

Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 

Thanks, 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com

10

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


1 
Staff Report 

Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Patricia Merizio 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural Residential (AR) to General Business 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION 3018 Church Street Ext 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 68782 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on March 4, 2020.  Notification was posted on site on 
March 4, 2020.  10 properties were mailed notification. 

TRACT SIZE 1.36 Acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Existing building on site 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N GB Commercial (HVAC Business) 

E R-12.5 / AR Residential / Vacant 

W AR Vacant 

S AR Vacant 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION Agricultural Residential (AR) General Business (GB) 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

TYPICAL USES 
Large residential lots to 
accommodate septic systems 

Accommodate businesses that 
serve the traveling public 

11



2 
Staff Report 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS Stream feature located on northern property line 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan submittal is required for any change of 
use in existing building 

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS None available (per NCDOT Annual Average Daily 
Traffic Mapping)  

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Depending on site plan submittal, sidewalks may 
be required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

12



3 
Staff Report 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed General Business zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area. 

Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 

The Future Land Use Map designates this location as a Suburban Residential character 

area. However, given that there is an existing non-residential structure on the property 

and the property is adjacent to existing General Business, staff recommends amending 

the Future Land Use Plan and designate the subject property as Office and 

Employment.  The requested General Business zoning district is generally consistent 

with this character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 

Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   

• (1.2) Encourage non-residential growth in the form of retail, restaurants, professional

offices and industrial development.

Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce 
retail leakage: 

• (2.1) Support Winterville’s transformation from a “bedroom community” to a

“neighboring community” of Greenville.

Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, 
expansion and retention: 

• (6.2) Encourage and support local businesses, especially in expansion efforts.

13



4 
Staff Report 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 

Staff Analysis 
The 1.364 acre property has an existing commercial building on it.  The property North of the 
is zoned General Business (GB) and has been permitted for a commercial business and 
currently under construction (Anderson HVAC). East of the request (across Church Street 
Ext) is zoned R-12.5 and AR.  Holly Grove subdivision is located diagonally across the street 
and the property south of the subdivision is vacant.  South of the request is vacant and AR. 
West of the request is vacant and zoned AR. The request is consistent with the intent and 
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, the  Comprehensive Land Use Plan and is generally 
compatible with the existing development and trend in the surrounding area. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested General Business District. 

14



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Pitt County Shrine Club – Rezoning Request (3100 Church Street Ext – parcel 73685). 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Addendum, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent 
Property Owners, Advertised Notice, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Pitt County Shrine Club 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road 

Parcel Number: 73685 

Site Data: 2.99 Acres 

Current Zoning District: AR 

Proposed Zoning District: Office and Institutional – Conditional District 

The following conditions would apply: to operate a fraternal organization (Pitt County Shrine Club); to use 

the facility for fraternal meetings and fundraising efforts to support Shriners Hospital for Children; to allow the 

facility to be rented to the public for wedding receptions on Saturdays/Sundays and business meetings and 

luncheons during the week; public rental events on Saturday would not begin before 8 am and would 

conclude by 11 pm. 

• Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval at the May 18, 2020 meeting.

• Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the Public Hearing on July 29, 2020.

• Notification was posted on the site on May 8, 2020

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

15



OWNERSHIP INFORMATION: 

REZONING APPLICATION 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

2 5 71 Railroad Steel 

PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 

Phone: (252) 756-2221 

Pitt County Shrine Club Holding Corporation 
Applicant: 

Address: 
3100 Church Street Winterville, NC 28590 

Phone#: 
252-714-1062

Owner: 
Pitt County Shrine Club Holding Corporation 

3100 Church Street Winterville, NC 28590 
Address: 

Phone#: 
252-714-1062

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

73685 
Parcel#: 

2.990 
Area (square feet or acres): 

Current Land Use: 
Society Building 

Staff Use Only 
Appl.# _____ _ 

-----------------------------------

. 
f 

NCSR 1714 (Church Street Extension) 
Location o Property: 

ZONING REQUEST 

. . . AR 
Ex1stmg Zonmg: --------------

                   01 - Conditional District
Requested Zoning: ____________ 

_

Reason for zoning change: 
To allow for renting facility. 

This application shall be accompanied by the following items: 

- A map drawn to a scale of not less than 400 feet to the inch and not more than 20 feet to the inch showing the land covered by the proposed
amendment;

- A legal description of the property;
- A list of the names and addresses of all owners of property involved in the map change and all adjoining property owners as shown on County tax

records;
- A filing fee according to a regularly adopted Fee Schedule of the Town.

See attached adendum for proposed conditions.

16



17



18



19



LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TO BE REZONED FROM AR TO 01 - CONDITIONAL DISTRICT        

PITT COUNTY SHRINE CLUB 

WINTERVILLE, WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC MAY 7, 2020 

Beginning at a point where the western right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street 
Extension) intersects the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1718 (Park Road). From the above 
described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 

With the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1718 (Park Road), N 4 7°00'1 O" W 424. 71 ', thence 
leaving the northern right-of-way of NCSR 1718 (Park Road), N 39°39'58" E 313.58', 
thence S 57°01 '46" E 311.12' to a point on the western right-of-way of NCSR 1714 
(Church Street Extension), thence with the western right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church 
Street Extension), S 19°30'00" W 362.19' and S 55°36'24" W 35.92' to the point of 
beginning containing 2.990 acres. 

Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\17-197 - Pitt County Shrine Club.docx 20



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 

PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 

Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 
 

Town Council 

Rezoning Request 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, August 10, 

2020 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room (**Due to COVID-19 social distancing will be in place) at 

2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public Hearing on the following proposal: 

 

The Pitt County Shrine Club has submitted a proposal to rezone Parcel 73685 (3100 Church Street Ext) as 

shown on the attached map from Agricultural-Residential (AR) to Office and Institutional - Conditional District 

(OI-CD).  Per the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, the Office and Institutional District (OI) is a district in which 

the principal use of land is for residences, general business offices and professional offices, and institutional 

types such as hospitals and medical clinics which do not materially detract from nearby residential areas.  Per 

the proposed rezoning request the property would be subject to the following conditions:  to operate a fraternal 

organization (Pitt County Shrine Club); to use the facility for fraternal meetings and fundraising efforts to 

support Shriners Hospital for Children;  to allow the facility to be rented to the public for wedding receptions on 

weekends and business meetings and luncheons during the week;  public rental events on weekends would not 

begin before 8 am and would conclude by 11:00 pm.   

 

Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town Tall and 

are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the Winterville Planning 

Department at (252) 215-2358. 

 

**Due to COVID-19 and the need for social distancing, persons having an interest in this matter and desiring to 

speak either for or against the requested rezoning are encouraged to submit written comments. You can email 

those comments to bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or mail them to Town of Winterville, ATTN: Planning 

Department, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590. Otherwise, please monitor the website for options on 

the opportunity to be heard during the meeting. For further information, contact the Winterville Planning 

Department at (252) 215-2358. 

21



  

WLH Development, LLC 
237 Churchhill Drive 
Greenville, NC 27858      

Charles Vernon White 
139 Vernon White Road 
Winterville, NC 28590 
      

 
Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate 
Holdings INC 
300 South Building CN 1000 
Chapel Hill, NC 27599 
 

  

  

Bobby H Allen Life Estate 
3107 Church Street Ext 
Winterville, NC 28590            

Robert Tugwell 
Susan Tugwell 
2436 Trellis Court 
Raleigh, NC 27604 
   

  

Bobby F Jefferson Jr 
527 Jimmies Creek Dr 
New Bern, NC 28562 
      

MAILED ON  
7/29/2020 
____________ 
 

     

Suzanne Brewer Harmon  
PO Box 2548 
Greenville, NC 27836 

   

  

 

               

  

 
 
 

      

 

         

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 22



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Town of Winterville 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, August 10, 2020 
at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room (**Due to COVID-19 social distancing will be in place) at 
2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public Hearing on the following proposal: 
 
The Pitt County Shrine Club has submitted a proposal to rezone Parcel 73685 (3100 Church Street 
Ext) as shown on the attached map from Agricultural-Residential (AR) to Office and Institutional - 
Conditional District (OI-CD). Per the Winterville Zoning Ordinance, the Office and Institutional District 
(OI) is a district in which the principal use of land is for residences, general business offices and 
professional offices, and institutional types such as hospitals and medical clinics which do not 
materially detract from nearby residential areas. Per the proposed rezoning request the property 
would be subject to the following conditions: to operate a fraternal organization (Pitt County Shrine 
Club); to use the facility for fraternal meetings and fundraising efforts to support Shriners Hospital for 
Children; to allow the facility to be rented to the public for wedding receptions on weekends and 
business meetings and luncheons during the week; public rental events on weekends would not 
begin before 8 am and would conclude by 11:00 pm. 
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
 
**Due to COVID-19 and the need for social distancing, persons having an interest in this matter and 
desiring to speak either for or against the requested rezoning are encouraged to submit written 
comments. You can email those comments to bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or mail them to Town 
of Winterville, ATTN: Planning Department, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590. Otherwise, 
please monitor the website for options on the opportunity to be heard during the meeting. For further 
information, contact the Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
  
 
Notes to Publisher: 
 
Legal Advertisements 
legals@apgenc.com 
(252) 329-9521 
 
Subject: Winterville Pubic Hearing – Shrine Club Rezoning. 
 
Please place the above legal advertisement in the Daily Reflector on Thursday, July 30, 2020 and 
Thursday, August 6, 2020. Should you have any questions please contact me. 
 
Please forward the invoice and Affidavit of Publication to me to assist with payment. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
Town of Winterville 
2571 Railroad Street/PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 
(252) 215-2344 – Phone 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com  

23

mailto:legals@apgenc.com
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


1 
Staff Report 

Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Pitt County Shrine Club 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural Residential (AR) to Office and Institutional Conditional 
District (OI-CD) 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION 3100 Church Street Ext 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 73685 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on May 8, 2020.  Notification was posted on site on May 8, 
2020.  7 properties were mailed notification. 

TRACT SIZE 2.99 Acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Existing building on site 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Fraternal Organization – CUP issued on 12/19/17 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Residential 

E AR Vacant 

W AR Residential / Vacant 

S AR Vacant 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS 

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION Agricultural Residential (AR) Office and Institutional - CD 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

TYPICAL USES 
Large residential lots to 
accommodate septic systems 

General business and 
professional offices. 

24



 

2 
Staff Report 

 

 
 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan approved by DRC 7/26/18 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS None available (per NCDOT Annual Average Daily 
Traffic Mapping)  

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS N/A 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

 

 

25



 

3 
Staff Report 

 
 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed General Business zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area. 
 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this location as a Suburban Residential character 

area. Per the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, civic organizations are potentially allowed 

within future land use category.  The property and existing building are already approved 

for the operation of the Pitt County Shrine Club.  Therefore, the requested Office and 

Institutional – Conditional District is generally consistent with this  character area as 

defined by the future land use designation. 

 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Land Use Policy 5 – Maintain and improve neighborhood character. 

• (5.1) Identify places that make Winterville unique. 

 

  

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 

 

Staff Analysis 
The 2.99 acre property has an existing building on it that has already been approved for the 
Pitt County Shrine Club.  The property North of the request currently vacant and is zoned 
Agricultural-Residential (AR). East of the request (across Church Street Ext) is zoned AR and 
has a single family home located on it.    South of the request is vacant and AR. West of the 
request is vacant and zoned AR. The request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, the  Comprehensive Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the 

26



 

4 
Staff Report 

existing development and trend in the surrounding area. 

 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Office and Institutional – Conditional 

District. 

 

27



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp – 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 
 

• June 8, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes; and 

• June 29, 2020 Special Called Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

28



 

Page 1 of 30 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 8, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room and electronically via ZOOM, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following 
were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman (remote) 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff Assistant/Human Resource Assistant 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Manager Parker noted several changes to the Agenda placed in front of everyone. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
amended agenda. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; 
Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 

29



 

Page 2 of 30 

PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Larue M. Evans – Town Clerk Harvey read the Proclamation. 

 

30



 

Page 3 of 30 

Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
Larue M. Evans Proclamation. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan: Planning Director Jones gave the following 
presentation. The Neuse River Plan involves Greene, Jones, Lenoir, Pitt and Wayne County, as well as 
all incorporated municipalities throughout the Region. Following adoption, the Town Council with formal 
certification of the plan for the next five-year cycle will complete the planning process initiated early last 
year (2019). Development of the draft document involved a series of four Hazard Mitigation Planning 
Committee meetings, as well as two public input meetings. Staff, as well as two Citizen Stakeholders 
represented each jurisdiction. A full copy of the draft plan, as well as materials associated with the 
planning process are available through the following web link: www.neuseriverhmp.com. 
 

 
 

 
 

31



 

Page 4 of 30 

 
 

 
 

 

32



 

Page 5 of 30 

 
 

 
 

 
The following Resolution of Adoption relates to the Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan: 
 

33



 

Page 6 of 30 

 
 

34



 

Page 7 of 30 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve Resolution 
20-R-061 adopting the Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. The poll vote results 
are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; 
Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Ange Plaza Lots 20 & 21 Final Plat: Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation.  
 

 
 

35



 

Page 8 of 30 

 
 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Final 
Plat for Ange Plaza, Lots 20 & 21. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Ange Plaza Lot 21 Annexation. Planning Director Jones gave the following presentation for the request: 
 

36



 

Page 9 of 30 

 
 

 
 
Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
annexation request. There were no comments. Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in 
opposition of the rezoning request. There were no comments. Mayor Jackson asked for any further 
discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve the 
Annexation of Ange Plaza Lot 21 with no conditions. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor 
Pro Tem Roberson, no; Councilman Moye, no; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; 
and Councilman Moore, no. Motion failed, 2-3. 
 
Town Manager Parker reminded everyone that any comments received within 24 hours must be 
considered and will be reported to Council.  
 
Written comments may be submitted 24 hours after the public hearing. Any action taken will be 
contingent upon receipt of any comments within the 24-hour requirement. 
 

37



 

Page 10 of 30 

Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the 
Annexation of Ange Plaza Lot 21 contingent upon receipt of any comments within 24 hours of 
the conclusion of the meeting. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, no; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 
*(Note to the minutes) No comments were received within 24 hours of the conclusion of the 
meeting, thus the motion approving the annexation of Ange Plaza Lot 21 is approved. 
 
Evergreen Construction Company Rezoning Request. Planning Director Jones gave the following 
presentation for the request: 
 

 
 

 
 

38



 

Page 11 of 30 

 
 

 
 

 

39



 

Page 12 of 30 

 
 

 
 

 

40



 

Page 13 of 30 

 
 

 
 

 

41



 

Page 14 of 30 

 
 

 
 

42



 

Page 15 of 30 

 
 

 
 

 

43



 

Page 16 of 30 

Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
plan.  
 
Tim Morgan with Evergreen and. Rick Baker with the Timmons Group gave the following presentation: 

 

 

44



 

Page 17 of 30 

 

 
 

 
 

45



 

Page 18 of 30 

 

 
 

 
 

46



 

Page 19 of 30 

 

 
 

 
 

47



 

Page 20 of 30 

 

 
 

 
 

48



 

Page 21 of 30 

 

 
 
 

49



 

Page 22 of 30 

Councilman Smith asked if any staff in place. Tim Morgan with Evergreen noted that a rental office is 
on site, with maintenance staff, and a call panel that residents can let in guests. Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson noted she viewed two additional sites was impressed with looks and they are well maintained 
She said Winterville residents have moved to them, the units open to the inside, would be an asset to 
our Town, and the development follows the land use plan. Councilman Moore note that the Planning 
and Zoning Board voted 8-1 to deny, and that was big difference, also, property values are down for the 
Town. Councilman Moore noted that transportation and turns will be a problem. Councilman Moye 
asked how do you monitor age? Tim Morgan with Evergreen said through the application process. He 
noted that there is no incentive to rent to ineligible households, there files reviewed, and they will get 
caught. Also, units are inspected every 6 months and violations would be caught. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the plan. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Written comments may be submitted 24 hours after the public hearing. Any action taken will be 
contingent upon receipt of any comments within the 24-hour requirement. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the 
Evergreen Construction Company Rezoning Request contingent upon receipt of any comments 
within 24 hours of the conclusion of the meeting. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro 
Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; 
and Councilman Moore, no. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 
*(Note to the minutes) Comments were received within 24 hours of the conclusion of the 
meeting, thus the rezoning required an additional meeting. A Special Called Meeting will be held 
on June 29, 2020 at 5:30 PM. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 

➢ May 11, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes; 
➢ May 26, 2020 Budget Work Session Minutes; 
➢ May 27, 2020 Budget Work Session Minutes; and 
➢ June 1, 2020 Budget Public Hearing Minutes. 

2. Merizio Property Rezoning Request – Schedule Public Hearing. 
3. Pitt County Shrine Club Rezoning Request – Schedule Public Hearing. 
4. Budget Amendment 2019-2020-7. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Consent 
Agenda. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, 
yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
2020-2021 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance: Town Manager Parker presented the Draft Budget 
Ordinance for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year. The Budget Ordinance reflects totals for the Draft Balanced 
Budget as presented and discussed at the Budget Public Hearing held on Monday, June 1, 2020. 
 

50



 

Page 23 of 30 

 
 

51



 

Page 24 of 30 

 
 

52



 

Page 25 of 30 

 
 

53



 

Page 26 of 30 

 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the 
2020-2021 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, no; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and 
Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 
 

54



 

Page 27 of 30 

School Resource Officer (SRO) Contract between the Town of Winterville and Pitt County Schools: 
Police Chief Willhite noted that Pitt County Schools has requested the Town of Winterville enter into a 
contract to supply a School Resource Officer (SRO) in the County schools in our jurisdiction. The 
County has proposed a one-year contract, which will pay the Officers salary and benefits ($64,340.54), 
and the Town of Winterville is responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle and training. This Officer 
would primarily be assigned to A.G. Cox Middle School, but will frequent W.H. Robinson Elementary, 
as well as Creekside Elementary as needed or prudent. The County will make 12 -monthly installments 
to the Town to reimburse the salary and benefits cost. As with other SRO’s throughout the County, this 
contract is renewed annually to address changes in salary or details. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
School Resource Officer (SRO) Contract between the Town of Winterville and Pitt County 
Schools. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, 
yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Reverter Clause for Parcel Number 23091 – Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County: Town Manager Parker 
noted that the Town deeded Habitat in 2009 with a reverter clause that if the property was not used in 5 
years to build a house for persons of low to moderate income it would revert back to the Town. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Smith to enforce the Reverter 
Clause for Parcel Number 23091 with the Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County. The poll vote 
results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman 
Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-
0. 
 
Highway 11 Right of Way and Ditch Mowing Contract: Public Works Director Welborn stated that staff 
accepted bids on Thursday May 14, 2020 for the Town’s annual ditch maintenance and Highway 11 
right of way mowing contract. There were two bidders with the lowest being Precision Lawn Care and 
Landscaping, Inc. There was only one bidder bid the first time advertised. This is the second 
advertisement for the contract. The lowest bidder is also the current holder of this contract and staff has 
experienced no issues. Staff recommends approval of the contract with Precision Lawn Care and 
Landscaping, Inc. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve the 
Highway 11 Right of Way and Ditch Mowing Contract with Precision Lawn Care and 
Landscaping, Inc. for a total of $37,054. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and 
Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project: Engineering Contract Amendment #1: Public Works 
Director Welborn noted that the Engineering consultant working on the Chapman Street Culvert 
Replacement project has requested a contract amendment to cover additional costs related to an 
extension in the contract time. The proposed increase will allow the Engineer to continue performing on 
site construction inspection as well as construction administration on behalf of the Town. The project is 
nearing completion; however, the original contract completion date will not be met due to weather and 
additional work that was necessary to complete the project. Staff anticipates the total project cost 
including engineering and construction costs coming in just under the total grant award amount 

55



 

Page 28 of 30 

including this engineering contract amendment. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project: Engineering Contract Amendment #1 with Freese 
& Nichols for $9,832. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; 
Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project - Chatham Civil Contracting Change Order #1: Public 
Works Director Welborn noted that the Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project is nearing 
completion. The Contractor has submitted a Change Order request due to additional work that was 
necessary to complete the project to this point. Additional work encompassed by this change order 
includes but is not limited to extra-restrained joint ductile iron water main to avoid a conflict with the new 
storm drainage. Also, replacement of an existing fire hydrant that was in conflict with the proposed 
storm drain, full testing and chlorination of the water main drop down assembly due to the COVID-19 
virus, and additional select backfill due to unsuitable native soils adjacent to the existing residences and 
within the roadway. The total change order request is $45,411.06. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve the 
Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project Change Order #1 with Chatham Civil Contracting 
for $45,411.06. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman 
Moye, no; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion 
carried, 4-1. 
 
2020 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project - Award Engineering Contract: Public Works 
Director Welborn noted that the Town received a zero interest 20-year loan award, for $1,974,200.75 
with $500,000 approved for principal forgiveness, from the Division of Water Infrastructure in the spring 
of 2020 for a Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project. The first step in meeting the required 
project milestones is to select an Engineering firm to develop the Engineering Report, Environmental 
Documentation, Construction Plans and Specifications, as well as perform Construction Administration 
and Inspections. Staff received one proposal to perform the work. Staff also received emails from two 
other engineering firms that were directly solicited, declining to submit on the project. Staff concurred 
that Rivers & Associates, Inc. presents the project familiarity, experience, technical expertise, 
scheduling and staffing to complete this project for the Town. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Smith to award the 2020 
Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project Engineering Contract to Rivers & 
Associates. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman 
Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Advisory Board Member Appointments: New appointments and reappointments to the Board of 
Adjustments, Planning and Zoning Board, Recreation Advisory Board, and the Stormwater Advisory 
Board provided to Council in the agenda packet. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve all Advisory 
Board appointments as presented. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem 

56



 

Page 29 of 30 

Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and 
Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Updated Funding for the Winterville Watermelon Festival: Town Manager Parker noted that Council is 
aware the Winterville Watermelon Festival has been cancelled for 2020 because of the COVID-19 
Pandemic. Alton Wadford contacted staff about what the Town would like the Festival Committee to do 
with the $50,000 allocation the Town gave the Committee for the 2020 Festival. Staff recommendation 
is that the Festival keep the $50,000 already paid to them for the 2020 Festival and use that towards 
the 2021 Festival, under the condition that the Committee withdraw their request for funding in the FY 
2020-2021 Annual Budget. Mr. Wadford agreed with the recommendation. Staff is asking Council to 
approve the recommendation for the record to give the Committee a formal written answer as such. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore to allow the Winterville 
Watermelon Festival to keep the $50,000 funds and use them for the next festival held. The poll 
vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman 
Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-
0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Temporary Electric Rate Reduction: Town Manager Parker asked for discussion from the Council. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to extend the 
Temporary Electric Rate Reduction for one additional month. The poll vote results are as 
follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, no; 
Councilman Hines, no; and Councilman Moore, no. Motion failed, 2-3. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted the Governor extending prohibition of utility shut offs until July 29, 2020 
and give at least 6 months to pay overdue utility bills. Mayor Jackson asked for any discussion or 
questions.  
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: None 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 

❖ Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 
❖ Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
❖ New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
❖ Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
❖ Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
❖ Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
❖ Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
❖ 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
❖ Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 
❖ Cemetery (BW) 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements. 
 
1. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, June 23, 2020; 6:30 pm – Operation Center. 
2. Happy Birthday USA Market: Thursday, July 2, 2020; 4 – 8 pm – Town Square. 
3. Town Offices Closed: Friday, July 3, 2020 for the Independence Day Holiday. 
4. No Town Council Meeting: July 13, 2020. 

57



 

Page 30 of 30 

 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
ADJOURN:  
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to adjourn the meeting. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 9:30 pm. 
 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of August 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

58



 

Page 1 of 13 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 29, 2020 – 5:30 PM 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 
REMOTE VIA ZOOM 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Special Called Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the 
Town Hall Assembly Room remote via ZOOM, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following 
were present: 

Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem (remote) 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman (remote) 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney (remote) 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moye gave the Invocation. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Hines to approve the agenda. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
BUSINESS: 
 
Evergreen Construction Company Rezoning Request: Planning Director Jones a brief presentation on 
the request. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to accept the 
comments received relating to the rezoning. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and 
Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 

59



 

Page 2 of 13 

 

60



 

Page 3 of 13 

 

61



 

Page 4 of 13 

 

62



 

Page 5 of 13 

 

63



 

Page 6 of 13 

 
 

 
Council discussed the comments submitted and presented advantages and disadvantages of the 
rezoning Mayor Jackson asked for further discussion or questions. Hearing none what is the Board’s 
pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve the 
Evergreen Construction Company Rezoning Request. The poll vote results are as follows: 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman 
Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, no. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 

64



 

Page 7 of 13 

Request to Paint a Portion of Railroad Street with an Anti-Racism Message: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson 
and Pastor Darron Carmon presented the item and the following written comments received were 
entered in the record. 
 

 

65



 

Page 8 of 13 

 

66



 

Page 9 of 13 

 

67



 

Page 10 of 13 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson noted the request from Pastor Carmon to support a positive movement to 
make things better and heal the wound. Councilman Hines expressed concerns of who would fund and 
be responsible for the upkeep. He suggested to form a Committee to investigate the item. Pastor 
Carmon said he appreciated Council listening and generating conversation to help the situation. This 
indicates the Town wants equal for all. He noted this is an ongoing situation and let us get the 
conversation going, this is an opportunity for Winterville to get into the conversation. Pastor Carmon 
noted they would pay if the Town will not. He said he would head up fund raising. Council is supportive 
of forming a Committee to get other information and clarify questions. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
Councilman Hines and Pastor Carmon to meet and discuss topic. 
 
A committee was formed to study the matter and will report to the Council its recommendations. 
Council will then decide what action to take. No Motion made. 
 
Discussion Create Human Relations Council: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson noted she had pulled 
information from Greenville, had organized forums, and community meetings with citizens that can help 
with multiple topics. Town Manager Parker noted she researched additional sources samples and 
examples. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moye to establish a 
Human Relations Council. 
 
Councilman Hines suggested Council take time to look into other examples. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson 
said she is willing to give some time and is willing give everyone time to study. 
 
Motion withdrawn made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and Councilman Moye agrees to withdraw 
second. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to meet with Town Manager Parker on ideas. 
 
Reappointments to CMSD Board: Town Manager Parker noted that representatives to the CMSD Board 
need to be appointed. She presented a letter from Calvin Henderson for consideration for appointment. 

68



 

Page 11 of 13 

 

 

69



 

Page 12 of 13 

 

70



 

Page 13 of 13 

 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Hines to reappoint 
Councilman Smith and Town Manager Parker to the CMSD Board for 4-year terms. The poll vote 
results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman 
Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-
0. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moye to adjourn the meeting. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 6:40 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 10th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

71



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance – Proposed Amendments. 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for September 14, 2020 to Consider the Amendments to the 
Ordinance. 

Attachment: Summary of Proposed Amendments. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Based on guidance from NC Department of Public Safety and staff review of the Winterville Flood Damage 

Prevention Ordinance, it was determined that the present ordinance requires some changes for clarification 

and to ensure consistency with the state’s model ordinance. 

 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended approval at the July 20, 2020 meeting. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amendments. 

 

72



 

Page 1 

Winterville Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance – Amendments Summary 

• Green text = Additions/Amendments 

• Red text = Deleted  

 

SECTION D. OBJECTIVES.  

 

The objectives of this ordinance are to: 

 

(1) protect human life, safety, and health; 

 

(2) minimize expenditure of public money for costly flood control projects; 

 

(3) minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally 

undertaken at the expense of the general public; 

 

(4) minimize prolonged business losses and interruptions; 

 

(5) minimize damage to public facilities and utilities (i.e. water and gas mains, electric, 

telephone, cable and sewer lines, streets, and bridges) that are located in flood prone areas; 

 

(6)  Minimize damage to private and public property due to flooding; 

(7)  Make flood insurance available to the community through the National Flood 

Insurance Program; 

(8)  Maintain the natural and beneficial functions of floodplains; 

(8) help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood 

prone areas; and 

 

(9) ensure that potential buyers are aware that property is in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

  

 

ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS 

“Alteration of a watercourse” means a dam, impoundment, channel relocation, change in 

channel alignment, channelization, or change in cross-sectional area of the channel or the 

channel capacity, or any other form of modification which may alter, impede, retard or 

change the direction and/or velocity of the riverine flow of water during conditions of the 

base flood. 

 

“Area of Future-Conditions Flood Hazard” means the land area that would be inundated by 

the 1-percent-annual-chance (100- year) flood based on future-conditions hydrology. 

 

“Design Flood”: See “Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation.” 

73



 

Page 2 

 

“Development Activity” means any activity defined as Development which will necessitate a 

Floodplain Development Permit.  This includes buildings, structures, and non-structural 

items, including (but not limited to) fill, bulkheads, piers, pools, docks, landings, ramps, and 

erosion control/stabilization measures. 

 

“Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM)” means the digital official map of a 

community, issued by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), on which both 

the Special Flood Hazard Areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the community 

are delineated. 

 

 

“Existing building and existing structure” means any building and/or structure for which 

the “start of construction” commenced before November 13, 2001. 

 

“Flood-resistant material” means any building product [material, component or system] 

capable of withstanding direct and prolonged contact (minimum 72 hours) with floodwaters 

without sustaining damage that requires more than low-cost cosmetic repair.  Any material 

that is water-soluble or is not resistant to alkali or acid in water, including normal adhesives 

for above-grade use, is not flood-resistant.  Pressure-treated lumber or naturally decay-

resistant lumbers are acceptable flooring materials.  Sheet-type flooring coverings that 

restrict evaporation from below and materials that are impervious, but dimensionally 

unstable are not acceptable.  Materials that absorb or retain water excessively after 

submergence are not flood-resistant.  Please refer to Technical Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-

Resistant Materials Requirements, and available from the FEMA.  Class 4 and 5 materials, 

referenced therein, are acceptable flood-resistant materials.  

 

“Floodway encroachment analysis” means an engineering analysis of the impact that a 

proposed encroachment into a floodway or non-encroachment area is expected to have on 

the floodway boundaries and flood levels during the occurrence of the base flood discharge.  

The evaluation shall be prepared by a qualified North Carolina licensed engineer using 

standard engineering methods and models. 

 

“Letter of Map Change (LOMC)” means an official determination issued by FEMA that 

amends or revises an effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study.  Letters 

of Map Change include: 

 

(a) Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA):  An official amendment, by letter, to an 

effective National Flood Insurance Program map.  A LOMA is based on technical 

data showing that a property had been inadvertently mapped as being in the 

floodplain, but is actually on natural high ground above the base flood elevation. 

A LOMA amends the current effective Flood Insurance Rate Map and establishes 

that a specific property, portion of a property, or structure is not located in a 

special flood hazard area. 

(b) Letter of Map Revision (LOMR):  A revision based on technical data that may 

show changes to flood zones, flood elevations, special flood hazard area 

74



 

Page 3 

boundaries and floodway delineations, and other planimetric features.   

(c) Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F):  A determination that a 

structure or parcel of land has been elevated by fill above the BFE and is, 

therefore, no longer located within the special flood hazard area.  In order to 

qualify for this determination, the fill must have been permitted and placed in 

accordance with the community’s floodplain management regulations. 

(d) Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR):  A formal review and comment 

as to whether a proposed project complies with the minimum NFIP requirements 

for such projects with respect to delineation of special flood hazard areas.  A 

CLOMR does not revise the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood 

Insurance Study; upon submission and approval of certified as-built 

documentation, a Letter of Map Revision may be issued by FEMA to revise the 

effective FIRM. 

 

“Light Duty Truck” means any motor vehicle rated at 8,500 pounds Gross Vehicular Weight 

Rating or less which has a vehicular curb weight of 6,000 pounds or less and which has a 

basic vehicle frontal area of 45 square feet or less as defined in 40 CFR 86.082-2 and is: 

 

(a) Designed primarily for purposes of transportation of property or is a derivation 

of such a vehicle, or 

(b) Designed primarily for transportation of persons and has a capacity of more than 

12 persons; or 

(c) Available with special features enabling off-street or off-highway operation and 

use. 

 

“Mean Sea Level” means, for purposes of this ordinance, the National Geodetic Vertical 

Datum (NGVD) as corrected in 1929, the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) as 

corrected in 1988, or other vertical control datum used as a reference for establishing 

varying elevations within the floodplain, to which Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) shown on a 

FIRM are referenced.  Refer to each FIRM panel to determine datum used. 

“Non-Conversion Agreement” means a document stating that the owner will not convert or 

alter what has been constructed and approved. Violation of the agreement is considered a 

violation of the ordinance and, therefore, subject to the same enforcement procedures and 

penalties. The agreement must be filed with the recorded deed for the property. The 

agreement must show the clerk’s or recorder’s stamps and/or notations that the filing has 

been completed. 

 

“Reference Level” is the top of the lowest floor for structures within Special Flood Hazard Areas 

designated Zone A1-A30, AE, A, A99 or AO as Zones A, AE, AH, AO, A99. The reference 

level is the bottom of the lowest horizontal structural member of the lowest floor for 

structures within Special Flood Hazard Areas designated as Zone VE.  

 

“Technical Bulletin and Technical Fact Sheet” means a FEMA publication that provides 

guidance concerning the building performance standards of the NFIP, which are contained 

75



 

Page 4 

in Title 44 of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations at Section 60.3. The bulletins and fact 

sheets are intended for use primarily by State and local officials responsible for interpreting 

and enforcing NFIP regulations and by members of the development community, such as 

design professionals and builders. New bulletins, as well as updates of existing bulletins, are 

issued periodically as needed. The bulletins do not create regulations; rather they provide 

specific guidance for complying with the minimum requirements of existing NFIP 

regulations.  

 

It should be noted that Technical Bulletins and Technical Fact Sheets provide guidance on 

the minimum requirements of the NFIP regulations. State or community requirements that 

exceed those of the NFIP take precedence. Design professionals should contact the 

community officials to determine whether more restrictive State or local regulations apply 

to the building or site in question. All applicable standards of the State or local building code 

must also be met for any building in a flood hazard area.  

 

“Temperature Controlled” means having the temperature regulated by a heating and/or 

cooling system, built-in or appliance. 

 

ARTICLE 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 

 

SECTION B. BASIS FOR ESTABLISHING THE SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS. 

 

The Special Flood Hazard Areas are those identified under the Cooperating Technical 

State (CTS) agreement between the State of North Carolina and FEMA in its Flood 

Insurance Study dated June 19, 2020 for Pitt County and associated Digital Flood 

Insurance Rate Maps (DFIRM) panels, including any digital data developed as part of the 

FIS, which are adopted by reference and declared a part of this ordinance, and all revisions 

thereto after January 1, 2021.  Future revisions to the FIS and DFIRM panels that do not 

change flood hazard data within the jurisdictional authority of Town of Winterville are 

also adopted by reference and declared a part of this ordinance.   Subsequent Letter of 

Map Revisions (LOMRs) and/or Physical Map Revisions (PMRs) shall be adopted within 3 

months.   

 

SECTION H. PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION. 

 

Violation of the provisions of this ordinance or failure to comply with any of its requirements, 

including violation of conditions and safeguards established in connection with grants of 

variance or special exceptions, shall constitute a shall constitute a Class 1 misdemeanor 

pursuant to NC G.S. § 143-215.58.  Any person who violates this ordinance or fails to comply 

with any of its requirements shall, upon conviction thereof, be fined not more than $50.00 

$100.00 or imprisoned for not more than thirty (30) days, or both.  Each day such violation 

continues shall be considered a separate offense.  Nothing herein contained shall prevent the 

Town of Winterville from taking such other lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy 

any violation. 

76



 

Page 5 

SECTION B. FLOODPLAIN DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION, PERMIT AND CERTIFICATION  

REQUIREMENTS. 

 

(3) Certification Requirements. 

 

(b) Floodproofing Certificate 

 

(i) If non-residential floodproofing is used to meet the Regulatory Flood Protection 

Elevation requirements, a Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 81-65), with 

supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection and maintenance plan 

are required prior to the actual start of any new construction.  It shall be the 

duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator a 

certification of the floodproofed design elevation of the reference level and all 

attendant utilities, in relation to mean sea level.  Floodproofing certification 

shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer 

or architect and certified by same.  The Floodplain Administrator shall review 

the certificate data, the operational plan, and the inspection and maintenance 

plan.  Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the applicant 

prior to permit approval.  Failure to submit the certification or failure to make 

required corrections shall be cause to deny a Floodplain Development Permit.  

Failure to construct in accordance with the certified design shall be cause to 

withhold the issuance of a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy. 

 

(ii) A final Finished Construction Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 

086-0-34), with supporting data, an operational plan, and an inspection 

and maintenance plan are required prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 

Compliance/Occupancy.  It shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit 

to the Floodplain Administrator a certification of the floodproofed design 

elevation of the reference level and all attendant utilities, in relation to 

NAVD 1988.  Floodproofing certificate shall be prepared by or under the 

direct supervision of a professional engineer or architect and certified by 

same.  The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data, the 

operational plan, and the inspection and maintenance plan.  Deficiencies 

detected by such review shall be corrected by the applicant prior to 

Certificate of Occupancy.  Failure to submit the certification or failure to 

make required corrections shall be cause to deny a Floodplain 

Development Permit.  Failure to construct in accordance with the certified 

design shall be cause to deny a Certificate of Compliance/Occupancy. 

 

 

(4) Determinations for existing buildings and structures.   

 

For applications for building permits to improve buildings and structures, including 

alterations, movement, enlargement, replacement, repair, change of occupancy, 

additions, rehabilitations, renovations, substantial improvements, repairs of 

77



 

Page 6 

substantial damage, and any other improvement of or work on such buildings and 

structures, the Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with the Building Official, 

shall: 

 

(a) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the 

market value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or 

structure before the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of 

repair, the market value of the building or structure shall be the market value 

before the damage occurred and before any repairs are made; 

 

(b) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged 

building to its pre-damaged condition, or the combined costs of improvements 

and repairs, if applicable, to the market value of the building or structure; 

 

(c) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial 

improvement or repair of substantial damage; and 

 

(d) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial 

improvement or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood 

resistant construction requirements of the NC Building Code and this ordinance 

is required. 

 

ARTICLE 5. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION. 

 

SECTION A. GENERAL STANDARDS. 

 

(8) Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a structure, which is in 

compliance with the provisions of this ordinance, shall meet the requirements of “new 

construction” as contained in this ordinance. 

 

SECTION B. SPECIFIC STANDARDS. 

 

(2) Non-Residential Construction.  New construction and substantial improvement of any 

commercial, industrial, or other non-residential structure shall have the reference level, 

including basement, elevated no lower than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation, as 

defined in Article 2 of this ordinance.  Structures located in A, AE, , AH, AO, and A1-30 

A99 Zones may be floodproofed to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation in lieu of 

elevation provided that all areas of the structure, together with attendant utility and sanitary 

facilities, below the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation are watertight with walls 

substantially impermeable to the passage of water, using structural components having the 

capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effect of buoyancy.  For 

AO Zones, the floodproofing elevation shall be in accordance with Article 5, Section G(2).  

A registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the floodproofing standards 

of this subsection are satisfied.  Such certification shall be provided to the Floodplain 

78



 

Page 7 

Administrator as set forth in Article 4, Section B(3), along with the operational plan and the 

inspection and maintenance plan. 
 

 

(9) Tanks.  When gas and liquid storage tanks are to be placed within a Special Flood 

Hazard Area, the following criteria shall be met: 

 

(a) Underground tanks.  Underground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be anchored 

to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic 

and hydrostatic loads during conditions of the design flood, including the effects 

of buoyancy assuming the tank is empty; 

 

(b) Above-ground tanks, elevated.  Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall 

be elevated to or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation on a supporting 

structure that is designed to prevent flotation, collapse or lateral movement 

during conditions of the design flood.  Tank-supporting structures shall meet the 

foundation requirements of the applicable flood hazard area; 

 

(c) Above-ground tanks, not elevated.  Above-ground tanks that do not meet the 

elevation requirements of Article 5, Section B (2) of this Article shall be permitted 

in flood hazard areas provided the tanks are designed, constructed, installed, and 

anchored to resist all flood-related and other loads, including the effects of 

buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood and without release of contents in 

the floodwaters or infiltration by floodwaters into the tanks.  Tanks shall be 

designed, constructed, installed, and anchored to resist the potential buoyant and 

other flood forces acting on an empty tank during design flood conditions.   

 

(d) Tank inlets and vents.  Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be:  

 

(i) At or above the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation or fitted with covers 

designed to prevent the inflow of floodwater or outflow of the contents of the 

tanks during conditions of the design flood; and 

 

(ii) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and 

hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the 

design flood.  

 

(10) Other Development.   

 

(a) Fences in regulated floodways and NEAs that have the potential to block the 

passage of floodwaters, such as stockade fences and wire mesh fences, shall meet 

the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance. 

 

(b) Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways and NEAs.  

Retaining walls and sidewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in 

regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Article 5, Section F of this 

79



 

Page 8 

ordinance.  

 

(c) Roads and watercourse crossings in regulated floodways and NEAs.  Roads and 

watercourse crossings, including roads, bridges, culverts, low-water crossings and 

similar means for vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side of a watercourse 

to the other side, that encroach into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations 

of Article 5, Section F of this ordinance.   

 

80



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Map, Legal Description, Certification of Sufficiency Resoulution of 
Annexation. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner of a portion of Parcel 84754 (Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3) is applying for annexation into 

the Town limits. 

 

Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3: 

Location: Worthington Road east of its intersection with Old Tar Road. 

Size: 18.38 Acres. 

Zoned: R-10. 

 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of Annexation (8/10/2020). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (9/14/2020). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (10/12/2020). 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency. 

81



 

 

 

82



83



F
O
R

K
 
S

W
A

M
P
 
C

A
N

A
L

FORK SWAMP CANAL

> BRIDGE AND >

EXISTING MAG NAIL

CHECKED:

 APPROVED:

DATE:

SCALE:

SURVEYED:

107-B COMMERCE STREET

GREENVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA  27858

(252) 756-9352

STROUD ENGINEERING, P.A.

OWNER:

ORDINANACE NO. AREA

ACCEPTED BY THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE,NC

MAYOR DATE

MAP SHOWING AREA TO BE ANNEXED BY

PROJECT NO.       

DRAWING NO.       

DRAWN:

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP          PITT COUNTY             NORTH CAROLINA

LICENSE NO.C-0647

VICINITY MAP

N
O

R
T

H

N
C
 

G
R
I

D
 

N
A

D
 

8
3

NEW CITY LIMIT LINE

OLD CITY LIMIT LINE

EXISTING CITY LIMIT LINE

LEGEND:

0 HOB

ELI'S RIDGE, PHASES 1 AND 3

BILL CLARK HOMES OF GREENVILLE, LLC

(252) 355-5805

GREENVILLE, NC  27858

200 E ARLINGTON BLVD

DTB

DTB

DTB

07/16/20

P1611ANNEX.DGN

200 400200 100

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1"= 200'

1"= 200'

M.B. 12, PG. 54

D.B. 1558, PG. 558

PN 25758

R/
W

60
' 

PUBLI
C 

R/
W 
- 

PAVED

WORTHI
NGTON 

RD

NCSR 
171

1 

R/
W

PN 25777

PN 25777

PN 36710

ALVA WAYNE WORTHINGTON

LOIS D. WORTHINGTON

D.B. 1558, PG. 508

PN 84823

REQUIRED BY LAW TO BE RECORDED".

MUNICIPAL BOUNDARIES, WHETHER OR NOT

BY MUNICIPALITIES,  NOR TO PLATS OF

STATE LINES, COUNTY LINES, AREAS ANNEXED

SHALL NOT APPLY TO BOUNDARY PLATS OF

"THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION

STATES:

REQUIREMENTS PER GS 47-30 (j) WHICH

THIS MAP IS EXEMPT FROM GS 47-30

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

M.B. 82, PG. 26

D.B. 3683, PG. 559

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

M.B. 82, PG. 26

D.B. 3683, PG. 559

ALVA WAYNE WORTHINGTON, SR

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

D.B. 3778, PG. 845

PN 84823

F
ork Sw

a
m
p

WINSTON DR.

V
I

L
L

A
G

E
 

D
R

W
I

N
T

E
R
 

GAYLE BLVD

R
A

G
L

A
N

D
 

R
D

LYNN 
LOOP

G
L

E
N

D
A

L
E

J
A

S
M
I

N
E

LORA LN

BAYBERRY

PRIMROSE SITE

WORTHI
NGTON 

RD

LAURIE ELLIS RD

O
L

D
 

T
A

R
 

R
D

N

O
L

D
 

T
A

R
 

R
D

21
3.

85
'

8.11'

182.81'

1
8
6
.
2
6
'

16
3.

09
'

8
0
.
0
0
'

2
3
9
.
8
2
'

1
5
0
.
0
0
'

1
5
0
.
0
0
'

60.10'
C1

C
2

C
3

26.06'

115.69'

83.24'

88.56'

99.74'

61.31'

    61.19'

CH= S01°42'14"E

L= 61.30'

 = 11°42'24"

R= 300.00'

C3

    28.28'

CH= S49°08'58"W

L= 31.41'

 = 89°58'58"

R= 20.00'

C2

    48.62'

L= 48.74'

 = 13°57'47"

R= 200.00'

C1

    24.34'

L= 24.35'

 = 05°21'57"

R= 260.00'

OF GREENVILLE, LLC
BILL CLARK HOMES

M.B. 82, PG. 26

D.B. 3683, PG. 559

NOT TO SCALE

SHEET 1 OF 1

CURVE DATA:

125.12'

114.32'

18.38 AC

A PORTION OF PN 84754

18.38 AC

N
E

W
 

C
I

T
Y
 

L
I

M
I

T
 

L
I

N
E

N
E

W
 
C
I
T

Y
 
L
I

M
I
T
 
L
I

N
E

REMAINDER OF PN 84754

REMAINDER OF PN 84754

1.65'

AXLEEX 
IRON

A PORTION OF PARCEL NUMBER 84754

P1611~001

024
84



85



 

 

Resolution No. 20-R-081 
 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER NCGS 160A-31 

 
 

Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 
 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition were 
received on July 27, 2020 by the Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take place; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Winterville seems it advisable to proceed in 
response to this request for annexation. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville 
that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition 
and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the result of the investigation. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 10th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

86



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY 

 

Eli’s Ridge, Phases 1 and 3 

 

To the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 

 

 I, Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have investigated the petition 

attached hereto and have found as a fact that said petition is signed by all owners of real property 

lying in the area described herein, in accordance with NCGS 160A-58.1. 

 

 In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of 

Winterville this the 11th day of August, 2020. 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   

 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

87



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2020-2021-1. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 2020-20201-1. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 8/3/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the first budget amendment for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses the annual roll of open Purchase Orders from the prior year. Our process carries 

over only necessary open PO’s into the next fiscal year. Once we have adopted the annual budget we then 

bring forward the items that were started in the prior year. This amendment also addresses an error 

discovered in the budget related to insurance expense. The correction has been made and will be funded for 

from fund balance and retained earnings. 

 

The total across all funds is $873,031, of which the PO Roll over accounts for $805,406.39 and the 

remainder of $67,624.61 is need for the insurance correction across all funds. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $873,031. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

88



BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment 

be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020:

 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease

Fund Balance Contribution General Fund 167,577$    

Fund Balance Contribution Recreation 13,188$       

Fund Balance Contribution Recreation 4,457$         

Fund Balance Contribution Powell Bill 143,121$    

Contribution from General Fund Fire Grant 7,700$         

Fund Balance Contribution Electric 216,405$    

Fund Balance Contribution Water 3,000$         

Fund Balance Contribution Sewer 299,779$    

Fund Balance Contribution Stormwater 17,804$       

Total 873,031$    -$            

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease

Insurance 1041412000 4127 Admin General Fund 5,300$         

Insurance 1041412001 4127 Finance General Fund 6,220$         

Contracted Services 1041412001 4233 Finance General Fund 10,000$       

Contracted Services 1041412004 4233 Information Tech General Fund 20,822$       

Insurance 1041413000 4127 Planning General Fund 1,380$         

Professional Development 1041413000 4221 Planning General Fund 1,100$         

Contracted Services 1042426000 4233 Public Buildings General Fund 16,989$       

Maint and Repair of Facility 1042426000 4239 Public Buildings General Fund 52,434$       

Insurance 1043431000 4127 Police General Fund 13,900$       

Insurance 1045451002 4127 Public Works General Fund 3,750$         

Engineering 1045451002 4232 Public Works General Fund 18,788$       

Insurance 1043432000 4127 Fire General Fund 2,250$         

Insurance 1843432000 4127 Fire Grant Fire Grant 6,300$         

Insurance 1843432001 4127 Fire Grant Training Fire Grant 1,400$         

Insurance 1560601000 4127 Rescue Training General Fund 812$            

Insurance 1041412002 4127 Inspection General Fund 1,675$         

Insurance 1560601000 4127 Recreation Recreation 4,457$         

Small Equipment 1560601000 4276 Recreation Recreation 11,135$       

Football 1560601000 4280 Recreation Recreation 2,053$         

Engineering 1645451000 4232 Powell Bill Powell Bill 9,188$         

Paving and Resurfaceing 1645451000 4270 Powell Bill Powell Bill 133,934$    

Insurance 6071711000 4127 Electric Electric 2,031$         

Supplies and Materials 6071711000 4230 Electric Electric 24,455$       

Engineering 6071711000 4232 Electric Electric 54,310$       

Depatmental Improvements 6071711000 4260 Electric Electric 2,408$         

Capital Outlay 6080801000 7150 Electric Electric 133,202$    

Insurance 6172721000 4127 Water Water 3,000$         

Insurance 6273731000 4127 Sewer Sewer 1,723$         

Maint and Repair of Equipment 6273732020 4225 Sewer Sewer 12,124$       

Engineering 6273732020 4232 Sewer Sewer 17,750$       

Contracted Services 6273732020 4233 Sewer Sewer 9,704$         

Capital Outlay 6280801000 7150 Sewer Sewer 258,478$    

Insurance 6374742000 4127 Storm Water Storm Water 1,270$         

Engineering 6374742000 4232 Storm Water Storm Water 16,534$       

Contribution to Fire Grant Fund 1041950000 9111 Non Departmental General Fund 7,700$         

Contribution to Recreation Fund 1041950000 9110 Non Departmental General Fund 4,457$         

Total 873,031$    -$            

Adopted the 10th day of August 2020.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2020-2021-1

89



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Draft Anti-Racism Message. 

Action Requested: Council Discussion and Direction. 

Attachment: NA. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

At the June Regular Board Meeting, Council discussed a request from Pastor Darron Carmon to “install” 
(paint, etc.) on a portion of Railroad Street. After discussion, the Council tabled the item so that Mayor Pro 
Tem Roberson, Councilman Hines and Pastor Carmon could further discuss options for said request. 

This item is being brought back for Council discussion and possible action. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: NA. 

 

90



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Draft Human Relations Council. 

Action Requested: Council and Possible Direction. 

Attachment: NA. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

At the June Regular Board Meeting, Council discussed a request from Mayor Pro Tem Roberson for the 
creation of a Human Relations Council for the Town. After discussion, the Council tabled the item so that 
Councilman Hines could look into Human Relations Councils further. 

This item is being brought back for Council discussion and possible action. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: NA. 

 

91



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2020 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project: Engineering Services. 

Action Requested: Approval of Engineering Contract with Rivers & Associates, Inc. 

Attachment: Engineering Services Agreement. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town received a zero interest 20-year loan award, in the amount of $1,974,200.75 with $500,000 being 

approved for principal forgiveness, from the Division of Water Infrastructure in the spring of 2020 for a 

Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project. Staff solicited proposals from Engineering firms to 

develop the Engineering Report, Environmental Documentation, Construction Plans and Specifications, as 

well as perform Construction Administration and Inspections. Staff and Council concurred that Rivers & 

Associates, Inc. presents the project familiarity, experience, technical expertise, scheduling and staffing to 

complete this project for the Town. Rivers & Associates submitted a proposed Engineering Services 

Agreement in the amount of $494,000 to include the Engineering Report/Environmental Information 

Document, preliminary and final design, preparation of plans and specifications, bidding and negotiation, 

permitting, surveying, construction contract administration and construction observation. 

Budgetary Impact: The project costs, including Professional Services, has been approved for funding 
through the NCDENR – DWI Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Town received a zero percent interest 
20-year loan award in the amount of $1,974,200.75 with $500,000 being approved for principal forgiveness. 
The funding included $498,000 for engineering, so this proposal will be within the budgeted amount. 

Recommendation: Approval of Engineering Services Agreement with Rivers & Associates, Inc. 

 

92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Old Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2020 Street Improvements Project – Milton Drive. 

Action Requested: Approval of Milton Drive Street Reconstruction. 

Attachment: CBR Pavement Design Report from Terracon Engineers.(To be provided) 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Contractor for the 2020 Street Improvements Project has completed most of the project except for the 

milling and resurfacing of Milton Drive. When the Contractor replaced the existing culverts in Milton Drive 

staff noticed that the existing pavement subgrade did not appear to have any aggregate, and the asphalt was 

installed on a very thin layer of aggregate which was installed on a clay subgrade. Staff was concerned that 

the road subgrade would fail if the existing asphalt was simply milled out, so a loaded dump truck was used 

to proof roll the existing pavement. When a loaded dump truck traveled down the street, an obvious “wave” 

was observed under the truck, indicating that the existing pavement section had failed and/or was 

insufficient. Due to this, staff has requested that a local soil engineer perform California Bearing Ratio tests 

on the existing soil subgrade to determine what pavement section is needed, and proposes that the existing 

pavement and subgrade be completely removed and replaced with the pavement section recommended by 

the engineer based on the CBR tests. This will lead to additional costs above what was originally proposed 

for Milton Drive. However, the street must be reconstructed in order to be resurfaced. Delaying the 

reconstruction will only lead to further deterioration of the existing street and subgrade and increased costs 

in the future. The worst-case scenario for street reconstruction would include undercutting the existing street 

24 inches and installing 24 inches of select backfill, 8 inches of CABC (stone), and 2 inches of asphalt. In 

addition to the money allocated to the project in last year’s budget, there would be an extra cost of 

approximately $140,000 to reconstruct the street from Vernon White Road to Roxie Court. $160,000 was 

budgeted for resurfacing in the current fiscal year budget, and staff proposes to expend that money on Milton 

Drive in addition to the money that was previously budgeted and encumbered. Staff also proposes to 

perform CBR tests on Gaylord Street and Chapman Street and have an engineer begin working on 

pavement design and reconstruction plans for each of those streets for next fiscal year. 

Budgetary Impact: Funds for the additional work on Milton Drive will need to be allocated from the current 
fiscal year budget for resurfacing in the Powell Bill Fund. This will delay work on Gaylord Street and 
Chapman Street until 2021. 

Recommendation: Approval of additional work with formal change order to follow. 

 

161



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: BS&A Software ERP System Contract. 

Action Requested: Approve the Contract. 

Attachment: BS&A Software Contract. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 7/30/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

This Contract is for the purchase of a new Enterprise Resource Planning Software. This software is used for 

the day to day operations of the Town. This includes Financial Accounting, Payroll, Human Resources, 

Building Inspections, Fire Inspections, Cash collections, Planning, Miscellaneous billing, Utility Billing, And 

Cemetery management. 

This software was selected through a vigorous process that included the assistance from consultants with 

the GFOA (Governmental Finance Officers Association), and a selection committee comprised of Town 

employees that represented all departments. We vetted five software companies and determined that BS&A 

has the best references and business model. Their approach is business is very different that the other 

companies that presented. The take a much more hands on approach to making sure the town is successful 

in converting to the new software. 

We are currently using Sungard Plus Series. They are no longer supporting this product and we are being 

forced to make a change. They are not developing a new plus series to replace it. In order to have a product 

that will provide all of the functionality that the Town needs we had to go to market. 

Financially, this will be a great move for the Town as we will reduce the annual maintenance fees from 

$54,000 to $22,430. These annual savings are more than half of what the current company cost, as well as, 

any of the other bidders in the process. 

The total upfront once time cost of the contract is $341,750 and annual maintenance fees are $22,430 with a 

CPI based increase each year. 

The appropriations for this project are included in the 20-21 FY budget. It is scheduled to be financed with 

debt that will be obtained at a future date. 

This contract has been approved by GFOA and has been reviewed by Keen Lassiter, the Town Attorney. 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is $341,750 plus annual maintenance beginning at 
$22,430. 

Recommendation: Approve the Contract. 

 

162



1 
 
 

SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Software License and Services Agreement that includes attached Exhibits A, B, C, D, and E (“Agreement”) is between Bellefeuil, 

Szur & Associates, Inc. ("BSA"), a Michigan corporation and the Town of Winterville, North Carolina (“Customer”), effective the date 

of the signature of the last Party to sign the Agreement (“Effective Date”).  Each party to the Agreement is referred to as a “Party” 

and the parties, collectively, are referred to as “Parties.” 

This Agreement sets the terms and conditions under which BSA will furnish certain licensed software and certain services described 

herein to Customer. 

SECTION A – SOFTWARE LICENSE  

1. License Grant. 

1.1. Upon the Effective Date, subject to the terms of this Agreement and Customer’s ongoing compliance with terms as 

detailed in Sections 1-4, 13, 21, 24, 26-28, BSA hereby grants to Customer a perpetual, non-exclusive, non-transferable, 

and non-assignable license to install and use the BSA Software Products for Customer’s internal business purposes only 

(and not, for example, as a data center, reseller, or service bureau for third parties), only on servers owned by Customer 

and located at Customer’s facilities or on servers where the BSA Software Products are made accessible exclusively to 

Customer through a contractual relationship with third party, and otherwise in accordance with this Agreement. “BSA 

Software Product(s)” means, the: (i) BSA software products set forth in Schedule 1 to Exhibit A; (ii) related interfaces 

and customizations; (iii) BSA manuals, BSA official specifications, and BSA user guides provided in or with BSA software 

products set forth in Schedule 1 to Exhibit A (“Documentation”); and (iv) all modifications to the BSA software products 

set forth in Schedule 1 to Exhibit A, including, but not limited to, fixes, new versions, new releases, updates, upgrades, 

corrections, patches, work-arounds (collectively, “Modifications”).  For the avoidance of doubt, Documentation does 

not include advertising, other general statements about products, or statements by sales or other staff members.  

Customer may make and keep (securely) archival copies of each BSA Software Product solely for use as backup.   

1.2. Customer will not sublicense, modify, adapt, translate, or otherwise transfer, reverse compile, disassemble or otherwise 

reverse engineer BSA Software Products or any portion thereof without prior written consent of the BSA.  Without 

limiting the foregoing, the BSA Software Products may not be modified by anyone other than BSA. If Customer modifies 

the BSA Software Products without BSA’s prior written consent, any BSA obligation to provide support services on, and 

the warranty for, the modified BSA Software Products will be void.  All rights not expressly granted are reserved. 

2. License Fees.  Customer agrees to pay BSA, and BSA agrees to accept from Customer as payment in full for the license granted 

herein, the software fees set forth in Schedule 1 to Exhibit A. 

3. Limited Software Warranty. 

3.1. BSA warrants and represents for a period of one (1) year from Final Acceptance of BSA Software Product that: (i) such 

BSA Software Product will perform substantially in the same manner as official demonstration versions and in 

accordance with BSA’s authorized online tutorials and videos that may have been made available as part of the sales 

and negotiation process leading up to this Agreement; and (ii) the BSA Software Product shall conform to the 

Documentation and Functional Requirements attached as Exhibit E of this Agreement. “and be free of material defects 

in workmanship and materials.  Functional Requirements” means the BSA responses to the requirements and any 

additional notes, comments or clarifications as provided by BSA.  Any claim under this Limited Software Warranty must 

be made within one (1) year from Final Acceptance. of the applicable BSA Software Product.  Customer’s exclusive 

remedy in the event of a breach of this warranty shall be to have BSA use reasonable efforts to repair or replace the 

non-conforming BSA Software Product so as to render it conforming to the warranty, or in the event that is not possible 

to render it conforming with reasonable efforts, to receive a refund of the amount paid for the BSA Software Product 

and any other BSA Software which would be rendered non-conforming by the removal of the refunded BSA Software 

Product. 

3.2. THE FOREGOING LIMITED SOFTWARE WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES 

RELATING IN ANY WAY TO THE BSA SOFTWARE PRODUCTS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THEIR FEATURES, 

ATTRIBUTES, FUNCTIONALITY, AND PERFORMANCE. THE FOREGOING LIMITED SOFTWARE WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF 

163



2 
 
 

ALL SUCH REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 

ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY AND FITNESS 

FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND THOSE ARISING BY STATUTE OR OTHERWISE IN LAW OR FROM THE COURSE OF 

DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.  BSA DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE BSA SOFTWARE PRODUCTS 

WILL MEET ANY OR ALL OF CUSTOMER’S PARTICULAR REQUIREMENTS EXCEPT AS EXPLICITLY STATED IN THE 

DOCUMENTATION OR FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENTS, THAT THE OPERATION OF THE BSA SOFTWARE PRODUCTS 

WILL OPERATE ERROR-FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, OR THAT ALL PROGRAMMING ERRORS IN THE BSA SOFTWARE 

PRODUCT(S) CAN BE FOUND IN ORDER TO BE CORRECTED. 

 

4. Ownership of BSA Software Products/Proprietary Information. 

4.1. BSA shall retain ownership of, including all intellectual property rights in and to, the BSA Software Products. Customer 

agrees not to challenge such rights and hereby assigns any and all copyrights and other intellectual property rights in 

and to the BSA Software Products to BSA and agrees to execute any and all documents necessary to effect the purposes 

of this paragraph.  “Intellectual property rights” means all trademarks, copyrights, patents, trade secrets, moral rights, 

know-how, and all other proprietary rights. 

 

SECTION B – PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

 

5. Professional Services.  BSA shall provide the services (“Professional Services”) set forth in Schedule 2 to Exhibit A and 

Exhibit D (Statement of Work), for the prices indicated, provided Customer fulfills its obligations set forth in this Agreement. 

The Parties may enter into future Statements of Work, which shall become part of this Agreement. 

6. Change Orders.  If Customer requires the performance of professional services not covered by the existing Agreement, or 

requires a change to the existing Professional Services, Customer shall deliver to BSA’s Project Manager a written change 

order request and specify in such change order request a description of the proposed work with sufficient detail to enable 

BSA to evaluate it and provide a proposal (“the Change Order Request”).  BSA may, at its discretion, prescribe the format of 

the Change Order Request.  BSA shall provide the Customer with an evaluation of the Change Order Request, which may 

include a written proposal containing the following: (i) implementation plans; (ii) the timeframe for performance; and (iii) the 

estimated price for such performance, proposed changes to this Agreement, and other information necessary for the Customer 

to make a decision on how to proceed (the Change Order).  Upon execution, all Change Orders shall be governed by the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement, unless mutually agreed upon otherwise in writing.  Customer acknowledges that such 

Change Orders may affect the implementation schedule and Go-Live Dates.    

7. License and Ownership.   

7.1. All rights, including all intellectual property rights, in and to product Deliverable delivered as a result of Professional 

Services under this Agreement shall be owned by BSA. “Deliverable” means any work product, modification to 

Documentation, report, write up, analysis, or recommendation, as defined in the SOW that BSA creates for Customer 

under the terms of this Agreement.  For the avoidance of doubt, work product that constitutes a BSA Software Product 

or portion thereof shall be governed by Section A including Section 1.1 thereof. 

7.2. Subject to Section 7.1 and Customer’s compliance with this Agreement, (including payment in full), the Town shall (i) have 

a limited perpetual, personal, irrevocable, nonexclusive, worldwide, and royalty free license to use, execute, reproduce, 

and modify the Deliverable, but only for Client’s internal use in conjunction with BSA Software Products  and (ii) be allowed 

to share the Deliverables with other governmental entities.  For the avoidance of doubt, the BSA Software Product shall 

not be shared with other governmental entities, while the output of said Products, such as produced reports, data analysis 

and information may be shared with other entities. 

8. Cancellation.  In the event Customer cancels or reschedules Professional Services, and without prejudice to BSA’s other rights 

and remedies, Customer is liable to BSA for: (i) all expenses incurred by BSA on Customer’s behalf; and (ii) daily fees associated 

with the canceled Professional Services (in accordance with the daily fee rate), if less than thirty (30) days advance notice is 

given regarding the need to cancel or reschedule and BSA cannot reasonably reassign its affected human resources to other 

projects where comparable skills are required. 

9. Limited Professional Services Warranty. 

164



3 
 
 

9.1. BSA warrants that its Professional Services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner, materially in 

accordance with the Statement of Work attached as Exhibit D, and that services will conform to the specifications 

identified in the Functional Requirements and other requirements of the Statement of Work. 

9.2.  In the event of a breach of the foregoing warranty and a claim in accordance with the next sentence, BSA’s sole 

obligation and Customer’s exclusive remedy with respect to such claim will be to have BSA re-perform the portion of 

the Professional Services with respect to which the warranty has been breached, to bring it into compliance with such 

warranty.  Any claim for breach of the foregoing warranty must be made by notice to BSA within thirty (30) days of 

performance of the portion of the Professional Services with respect to which the claim is made, or said claim shall be 

deemed waived.  

9.3. THE FOREGOING LIMITED PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS OR 

WARRANTIES RELATING TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 

ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, MERCHANTABLE QUALITY AND FITNESS 

FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND THOSE ARISING BY STATUTE OR OTHERWISE IN LAW, OR FROM THE COURSE OF 

DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.  

 

SECTION C – MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT 

 

10. Maintenance and Support Generally. 

10.1. For a one-year period, commencing on the installation of the BSA Software Products, and subject to Customer’s 

compliance with the Agreement, BSA will provide, at no charge to Customer, “Maintenance and Support,” meaning the 

following: (i) Modifications (such as patches, corrections, and updates) as are generally provided at no additional charge 

(beyond the cost of annual Maintenance and Support) by BSA to BSA customers; and (ii) technical support, as further 

described in Section 11, during BSA’s normal business hours.  

10.2. Commencing one (1) year from the installation of the BSA Software Products, Maintenance and Support will be 

provided on an annual basis, subject to compliance with the terms of the Agreement and payment of the annual 

Maintenance and Support fees outlined in Exhibit B.  Maintenance and Support will be renewed annually unless either 

Party notifies the other at least sixty (60) days prior to the anniversary of installation of its intent to terminate.  

10.3. BSA guarantees that the Maintenance and Support annual fee set forth in Exhibit B will not change for two (2) years 

from the date of the installation of the BSA Software Products.  After that date, BSA reserves the right each year to 

increase the fee over the previous year by no more than an amount that is proportionate to the increase (measured 

from the beginning of such previous year) in the Consumer Price Index as set forth by the U.S. Department of Labor, 

Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index – All Urban Consumers – U.S. City Average (the “Annual Renewal Fee”). 

11. Support. 

11.1. With respect to Errors following expiration of the Limited Software Warranty, BSA’s sole obligation and Customer’s sole 

remedy are set forth in this section 11. Subject to Customer’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement and purchase 

of Maintenance and Support, BSA shall use commercially reasonable efforts, commensurate with the severity level, to 

achieve its support response and resolution targets with respect to Errors as set forth in Exhibit C. An “Error” means a 

verifiable and reproducible failure of a BSA Software Product to operate in accordance with the Documentation) under 

conditions of normal use and where the Error is directly attributable to the BSA Software Product as updated with 

current Modifications.  If the customer modifies the BSA Software Products without BSA’s written consent, BSA’s 

obligation to provide support services on the BSA Software Products will be void. 

11.2. Support does not include the following: (i) installation or implementation of the BSA Software Products; (ii) onsite 

training/support, remote training, application design, and other consulting services; (iii) support of an operating system, 

hardware, or support outside of BSA’s normal business hours; (iv) support or support time due to a cause external to 

the BSA Software Products adversely affecting their operability or serviceability, which shall include but not be limited 

to water, fire, wind, lightning, other natural calamities, transportation, misuse, abuse, or neglect; (v) repair of the BSA 

Software Products modified in any way other than modifications made by BSA or its agents; (vi) support of any other 

third-party vendors’ software, such as operating system software, network software, database managers, word 

processors, etc.; and (vii) support of the BSA Software Products that have not incorporated current Modifications.  All 

165



4 
 
 

such excluded Maintenance and Support Services performed by BSA at Customer’s request shall be invoiced to 

Customer on a time and materials basis, plus reasonable expenses associated therewith. 

11.3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in order to maintain the integrity and proper operation of the Software, 

Customer agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to implement, in the manner instructed by BSA, all 

Modifications in a timely manner.  Customer’s failure to implement any Modifications may limit or restrict the ability of 

Customer to implement future Modifications.  Customer shall provide prompt notice of any Errors discovered by 

Customer, or otherwise brought to the attention of Customer.  Proper notice may include, without limitation, prompt 

telephonic and written (either via e-mail or postal mail) notice to BSA of any purported Error.  If requested by BSA, 

Customer agrees to provide written documentation of Errors to substantiate those Errors and to otherwise assist BSA 

in the detection and correction of said Errors.  BSA will use its commercial reasonable judgment to determine if an Error 

exists. 

11.4. Customer acknowledges and agrees that BSA and product vendors may require online access to the BSA’s system in 

order for BSA to provide Maintenance and Support Services hereunder.  Accordingly, Customer shall provide a 

connection to the Internet to facilitate BSA’s remote access to BSA’s system.  BSA shall provide remote connection 

software, which may require installation of a software component on a workstation or server computer. 

 

SECTION D – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

12. Customer Assistance.  Customer acknowledges that the implementation of the BSA Software Products is a cooperative 

process requiring time and resources of Customer personnel.  Customer shall, and shall cause Customer personnel to, use all 

reasonable efforts to cooperate with and assist BSA as may be reasonably required to meet the project deadlines and other 

milestones agreed to by the Parties for implementation and defined in the Statement of Work.  BSA shall not be liable for 

failure to meet such deadlines and milestones when such failure is due to force majeure (as defined in Paragraph 26. below) 

or to the failure by Customer personnel to provide such cooperation and assistance (either through action or omission). 

13. BSA Proprietary Information.  

13.1. Customer acknowledges that the information associated with or contained in the BSA Software Products and 

information used in the performance of Professional Services include trade secrets and other confidential and 

proprietary information of BSA (the “Proprietary Information”).   

13.2. The Customer shall maintain in confidence and not disclose Proprietary Information, directly or indirectly, to any third 

party without BSA’s prior written consent.  Customer shall safeguard the Proprietary Information to the same extent 

that it safeguards its own most confidential materials or data, but in no event shall the standard implemented be less 

than industry standard.  Proprietary Information shall be used by Customer solely to fulfill its obligations under this 

Agreement. Customer shall limit its dissemination of such Proprietary Information to employees within the Customer’s 

business organization who are directly involved with the performance of this Agreement and have a need to use such 

Proprietary Information.  Customer shall be responsible for all disclosures by any person receiving Proprietary 

Information, by or through it, as if Customer itself disseminated such information.  

13.3. Proprietary Information shall not include any information that: (a) is or becomes publicly known through no wrongful 

act or breach of any obligation of confidentiality by Customer; (b) was lawfully known to Customer prior to the time it 

was disclosed to or learned by Customer in connection with this Agreement, provided that such information is not 

known to Customer solely because of its prior business relationship with BSA; (c) was received by Customer from a 

third party that is not under an obligation of confidentiality to BSA; or (d) is independently developed by Customer for 

a party other than BSA without the use of any Proprietary Information.  The following circumstances shall not cause 

Proprietary Information to fall within any of exceptions (a) through (d) above: (i) a portion of such Proprietary Information 

is embraced by more general information said to be in the public domain or previously known to, or subsequently 

disclosed to, the Customer; or (ii) it is a combination derivable from separate sources of public information, none of 

which discloses the combination itself.  

13.4. If Customer is required, or anticipates that it will be required, to disclose any Confidential Information pursuant to a 

court order or to a government authority, Customer shall, at its earliest opportunity, provide written notice to BSA so 

166



5 
 
 

as to give BSA a reasonable opportunity to secure a protective order or take other actions as appropriate.  Customer 

shall at all times, cooperate with BSA so as to minimize any disclosure to the extent allowed by applicable law. 

14. Limitation on Liability and Damages.  BSA’S ENTIRE LIABILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, 

OR LOSSES ARISING FROM THE BSA SOFTWARE PRODUCTS (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THEIR USE, OPERATION, 

AND/OR FAILURE TO OPERATE), PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT, ANY THIRD-PARTY 

PERFORMANCE OR LACK THEREOF, OR OTHERWISE ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, SHALL BE 

ABSOLUTELY LIMITED TO DIRECT DAMAGES NOT IN EXCESS OF THE PURCHASE PRICE OF BSA SOFTWARE PRODUCTS PLUS, 

TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE, THE PURCHASE PRICE OF ANY PROFESSIONAL SERVICE SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT THAT 

GIVES RISE TO THE CLAIM.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION CONTAINED HEREIN, BSA SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY 

INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONTINGENT DAMAGES OR EXPENSES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, 

TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, BSA SOFTWARE 

PRODUCTS, ANY THIRD-PARTY PERFORMANCE, OR LACK THEREOF, OR BSA’S PERFORMANCE, OR LACK THEREOF, UNDER 

THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, LOSS OF REVENUE, PROFIT, OR 

USE.   TO THE EXTENT THAT APPLICABLE LAW DOES NOT PERMIT THE LIMITATIONS SET FORTH HEREIN, THE LIABILITY AND 

DAMAGES SHALL BE LIMITED AND RESTRICTED TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. THE FOREGOING LIMITATION OF 

LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS THAT ARE SUBJECT TO SECTION 17. 

15. Customer is solely responsible for its data, its database, and for maintaining suitable back-ups of the data and database to 

prevent data loss in the event of any hardware or software malfunction.  Customer covenants and agrees to undertake all 

necessary measures to protect and secure its data, including implementation of technical, administrative and physical 

protections. BSA SHALL HAVE NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR DATA LOSS REGARDLESS OF THE REASONS FOR SAID 

LOSS. To the maximum extent authorized by law, Customer agrees to defend, indemnify and hold BSA harmless for any claim 

by any person or entity arising out of any loss or compromise of data or data security or arising out of Customer’s breach of 

this Agreement. 

16. Additional Disclaimer.  SUPPLIER PROVIDES NO WARRANTY FOR ANY THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE AND/OR HARDWARE.  

EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, SUPPLER WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE, THIRD-

PARTY SERVICES AND/OR HARDWARE.  
17. Indemnification for Intellectual Property Infringement.  If a claim is made or an action is brought alleging that a BSA 

Software Product infringes on a U.S. patent, or any copyright, trademark, trade secret or other proprietary right, BSA will 

defend Customer against such claim and will pay resulting costs and damages finally awarded, provided that: (a) Customer 

promptly notifies BSA in writing of the claim; (b) BSA has sole control of the defense and all related settlement negotiations; 

(c) Customer reasonably cooperates in such defense at no expense to BSA; and (d) Customer remains in compliance with the 

Agreement and has continued to purchase Maintenance and Support Services.  The obligations of BSA under this Section are 

conditioned on Customer’s agreement that if the applicable BSA Software Product, in whole or in part, or the use or operation 

thereof, becomes, or in the opinion of BSA is likely to become, the subject of such a claim, BSA may at its expense either 

procure the right for Customer to continue using the BSA Software Product or, at the option of BSA, replace or modify the 

same so that it becomes non-infringing (provided such replacement or modification maintains the same material functionality 

and does not adversely affect Customer’s use of the Update as contemplated hereunder). 

 

18. General Indemnification. BSA will indemnify and hold harmless Customer and Customer agents, officials, and employees 

from and against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including reasonable 

attorney's fees and costs) for (a) personal injury or property damage to the extent caused by BSA’s negligence or willful 

misconduct;  (b) BSA’s violation of PCI-DSS requirements or a law applicable to BSA’s performance under this Agreement, or 

(c) violation of our Confidentiality obligations as set forth in this Agreement.  Customer must notify BSA promptly in writing 

of the claim and give BSA sole control over its defense or settlement.  Customer agrees to provide BSA with reasonable 

assistance, cooperation, and information in defending the claim at Customer’s expense. 

 

 

19. No Intended Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of BSA and Customer.  No 

third party will be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement, and no third party will have the right to make any claim or assert 

any right under this Agreement. 

20. Termination.  Without prejudice to other rights and remedies, and except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, either 

Party may terminate this Agreement for the other Party’s material breach upon failure to cure such breach after thirty (30) 

167



6 
 
 

days’ written notice identifying with specificity the nature of the breach.  Upon termination of this Agreement: (a) Customer 

shall promptly pay all amounts payable to BSA for Services rendered and work performed up to the date of termination; and 

(b) Customer shall return or destroy, at the direction of the BSA, BSA’s Proprietary Information in its possession.  The 

termination of this Agreement will not discharge or otherwise affect any pre-termination obligations of either Party existing 

under this Agreement at the time of termination.  Sections 1.2, 4.1, 7.1, 13 through 16, 19, 21 through 30, and the provisions 

of this Agreement, which by their nature extend beyond the termination of this Agreement, will survive termination of the 

Agreement.  No action arising out of this Agreement, regardless of the form of action, may be brought by Customer more 

than one (1) year after the date the action occurred. 

21. Payment Terms.  Customer shall pay BSA for all amounts in accordance with this Agreement and Exhibit A. 

22. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the state 

of North Carolina, without regard to its choice of law rules.  BSA and the Customer agree that the exclusive venue for any legal 

or equitable action shall be the Courts of the County of Pitt, State of North Carolina, or in any court of the United States of 

America lying in the Eastern District of North Carolina. 

23. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement of Customer and BSA with respect to the subject matter 

hereof, and supersedes any prior agreements, understandings, and representations, whether written, oral, expressed, implied, 

or statutory.  Customer hereby acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement, it did not rely on any information not 

explicitly set forth in this Agreement. 

24. Export.  Customer will comply with all applicable laws, including applicable export control laws that prohibit export or 

diversion of certain products and technology to certain countries or individuals, including foreign nationals in the United 

States.  Customer undertakes to determine any export licensing requirements and to comply with such obligations.  The BSA 

Software Products are deemed to be commercial computer software as defined in FAR 12.212 and subject to restricted rights 

as defined in FAR Section 52.227-19 “Commercial Computer Software-Restricted Rights” and DFARS 227.7202, “Rights in 

Commercial Computer Software or Commercial Computer Software Documentation”, as applicable, and any successor 

regulations.  Any use, modification, reproduction release, performance, display, or disclosure of BSA’s Software Products by 

the U.S. Government shall be solely in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

25. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof, to any extent, is held invalid or 

unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances, 

other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, will not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of 

this Agreement will be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

26. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors, permitted assigns, representatives, and heirs 

of the Parties hereto.  For avoidance of doubt, any expanded use by Customer of the Program, for example, in the event of 

annexation or desired shared services, shall require the consent of BSA. 

27. Force Majeure. “Force Majeure” is defined as an event beyond the reasonable control of a Party, including governmental 

action, war, riot or civil commotion, fire, natural disaster, problematic weather, lack of availability of Customer provided 

technology, labor disputes, restraints affecting shipping or credit, delay of carriers or any other cause that could not, with 

reasonable diligence, be foreseen, controlled or prevented by the Party. Neither Party shall be liable for delays in performing 

its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that the delay is caused by Force Majeure. 

28. Notice. All notices, requests, demands, and determinations under the Agreement (other than routine operational 

communications), shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given: (i) when delivered by hand; (ii) one (1) business day after 

being given to a nationally recognized overnight delivery service for next-business-day delivery, all fees prepaid; (iii) when 

sent by confirmed facsimile with a copy sent by another means specified in this provision; or (iv) six (6) calendar days after the 

day of mailing, when mailed by United States mail, via registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 

and in each case addressed as shall be set forth below.  A Party may from time-to-time change its address or designee for 

notification purposes by giving the other prior written notice of the new address or designee and the date upon which it will 

become effective. 

 

If to BSA: 

BSA Software 

14965 Abbey Lane 

168



7 
 
 

Bath, MI 48808 

Attn: Contracts Manager 

Telephone: 517-641-8900 

  

  

If to Customer: 

  

Town of Winterville 

2571 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Telephone No.:  252-756-2221 

 

 

29. Independent Contractor.  This is not an agreement of partnership or employment of BSA or any of BSA’s employees by 

Customer.  BSA is an independent contractor for all purposes under this Agreement. 

30. Contract Documents and Order of Precedence.  The text of the Agreement without any Exhibits and Schedules shall control 

over any inconsistent text in any of the Exhibits or Schedules.  This Agreement includes the following Exhibits and Schedules: 

Exhibit A – Payment Terms Generally 

   Schedule 1 to Exhibit A - License/Interface/Customization Fees 

Schedule 2 to Exhibit A – Professional Services Fees 

Exhibit B – Maintenance and Support Fees 

Exhibit C – Support Call Process 

Exhibit D – Statement of Work 

Exhibit E – BSA’s Response to Town’s Functional and Technical Requirements 

 

31. Town Insurance.  Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the Town shall be filed with the Town prior to the commencement 

of the Work.  These Certificates shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under the policies will not be canceled unless 

at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the Town.  All insurance policies shall be issued by responsible 

companies whom are acceptable to the Town and licensed and authorized to do business under the laws of the State of North 

Carolina.  BSA shall effect insurance to protect the interest of BSA,and sub contractors in provision of Services. BSA shall 

provide proof of such insurance to the Town by providing a Certificate of Insurance reflecting such coverage and adding the 

Town as a Certificate holder. The Certificate of Insurance shall endorse the Town as an additional insured on all liability policies 

with the exception of Professional Liability policy. 

 

31.1. BSA shall procure and maintain, at BSA's own expense during the Contract time, Liability Insurance as hereinafter specified. 

31.1.1. BSA's General Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance, including vehicle coverage issued to BSA and 

protecting BSA from all claims for personal injury; including death and all claims for destruction of or damage to 

property arising out of or in connection with any operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by 

BSA or a Sub Contractor employed by the Prime Contractor 

31.1.2. Insurance shall be written with a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 for all damages arising out of bodily 

injury, including death, at any time resulting therefrom, sustained by any one person in any one accident; and a 

limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 aggregate for any such damages sustained by two or more persons in 

any one accident. 

31.1.3. Insurance shall be written with a limit of liability of not less than $500,000 for all property damage sustained by 

any one person in any one accident, and a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 aggregate for any such 

damage sustained by two or more persons in any one accident. 

31.2. BSA shall procure and maintain, at BSA's own expense during the Contract time, Professional Liability Insurance.  The 

aggregate limit should be total insurance available for claims of at least $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 aggregate. 

 

169



8 
 
 

31.3. BSA shall procure and maintain, at BSA's own expense during the Contract time, in accordance with the provisions of the 

laws of the State of North Carolina Workers' Compensation Insurance, including occupational disease provisions, for all 

of BSA's employees, and in case any Work is sublet, BSA shall require such Sub Contractor identically to provide Workers' 

Compensation Insurance, including an occupational disease provision for all the latter's employees unless such employees 

are covered by the protection afforded by BSA.  In case any class of employees engaged in hazardous Work under this 

Contract are not protected under the Workers' Compensation Law, BSA shall provide, and shall cause each Sub Contractor 

to provide adequate and suitable insurance for the protection of its employees not otherwise protected. 

32. Pricing.  Pricing for any listed optional products or rates associated with any Change Order shall be identified in this 

Agreement and valid for twelve (12) months from the Effective Date. 

33. Subcontractors.  BSA will not subcontract any services under this Agreement without Customer’s prior written consent. 

 

 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the dates set forth below. 

 

BSA SOFTWARE, INC.     CUSTOMER 

By: ______________________________   By: ___________________________ 

Name: ___________________________   Name: _________________________ 

Title: ____________________________   Title: __________________________ 

Date: ____________________________   Date: __________________________ 

  

170



9 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Payment Terms 

1. Customer shall pay BSA within thirty (30) days of invoice.  Undisputed payments not received within fifteen (15) days of 

the due date shall be subject to a one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month interest charge (or, if lower, the highest 

amount chargeable at law) assessed against the unpaid balance from the date due until the date payment is received 

2. Any charges not disputed by Customer in good faith will be deemed approved and accepted by Customer.  For purposes 

of this Agreement, a good faith dispute regarding amounts owed exists only if Customer provides in writing at least ten 

(10) days prior to due date of payment on the invoice, notification of such dispute, the specific portion of the invoice in 

dispute, and the specific grounds of the dispute (which must be asserted in good faith), and Customer pays in timely 

fashion such portions that are not subject to such dispute. 

3. BSA shall invoice Customer $91,805 upon Effective Date.  Such amount equals BSA’s software license fees as set forth in 

Schedule 1.  

4. BSA shall invoice Customer $81,125 upon completion of onsite discovery and data conversion.  Such amount equals BSA’s 

Project Management/Implementation Planning Fees and Data Conversion fees as set forth in Schedule 2. 

5. BSA shall invoice Customer $115,500 upon final acceptance of the project.  Such amount equals On-Site Implementation 

and Training costs, Customization and Interface costs as set forth in Schedule 2.  

6. BSA shall invoice Customer for travel costs at a fixed price up to $53,320 based upon number of trips and days onsite.  

Flights will be calculated at $600 for each roundtrip flight, meals $55 per day, hotels $135 per night and rental cars at $60 

per day.  

7. Customer shall be responsible for all taxes (including sales taxes) imposed as a result of any transaction associated with 

this Agreement, exclusive of taxes on BSA’s net income and taxes related to travel expenses.   

 

 

  

171



10 
 
 

Schedule 1 to Exhibit A 

License Fees 

 

Applications 

 

Financial Management   

$5,595 General Ledger .NET 

Accounts Payable .NET $4,745 

Cash Receipting .NET $4,745 

Miscellaneous Receivables .NET $4,745 

Purchase Order .NET $4,745 

Work Orders .NET $4,745 

Cemetery Management .NET 

(20,000 plots) 

$4,570 

Utility Billing .NET 

(4,173 water customers; 3,207 electric customers; 3,970 garbage customers) 

$12,250 

Personnel Management   

$6,145 Payroll .NET 

Human Resources .NET $5,595 

Community Development   

$6,990 Building Department .NET 

Field Inspection .NET $2,940 

Property   

$5,595 Tax .NET 

Delinquent Personal Property .NET $4,745 

BS&A Online   

 

$3,775 Community Development 

Employee Self-Service $3,690 

Financials $3,690 

Public Records Search + Online Bill Pay 

With use of integrated Credit Card Processor 

$2,500 

Subtotal $91,805 

 

 

172



11 
 
 

Schedule 2 to Exhibit A 

Professional Services Fees 

  

Data Conversions/Database Setup 

 

Convert existing SunGard data to BS&A format:  

$2,800  General Ledger (COA, Balances, Budget, Up to 10 Years Journal Transaction history) 

 Accounts Payable (Vendors, Up to 10 years invoices and check history) $2,375 

 Cash Receipting (Receipt items, Up to 10 years receipt history) $2,375 

 Payroll (Database Setup, Employee detail and YTD, Up to 10 years check history) $4,610 

 Human Resources (Position/status history, Positions, License types) $2,800 

 Utility Billing  $10,600 

Convert existing Excel data to BS&A format:  

$3,000  Cemetery Management  

Convert existing Pentamation Finance Plus data to BS&A format:  

$2,375  Delinquent Personal Property 

Convert existing CommunityPlus data to BS&A format:  

$5,940  Building Department  

Database Setup: 

 Miscellaneous Receivables (Setup of Billing Items, Penalties) 

 

$1,500 

 Work Orders (Setup of Work Order Types, Facilities, Assets, Equipment, Materials, Workers (if not using 

Employees   as Workers)) 

$2,000 

Subtotal $40,375 

No conversion or database setup to be performed for:   

 Purchase Orders 

 Field Inspection  

 Tax  

  

Custom Import 

 

Custom import from third-party software to populate Building Department database with parcels, properties, 

and current owners.  

$1,500 

  Annual County Import Fee for Tax (recurring charge) 

 

$3,000 

Subtotal $4,500 

 

 

173



12 
 
 

 

Project Management and Implementation Planning 

 

Services include: 

 Analyzing customer processes to ensure all critical components are addressed. 

 Creating and managing the project schedule in accordance with the customer's existing processes and needs. 

 Planning and scheduling training around any planned process changes included in the project plan. 

 Modifying the project schedule as needed to accommodate any changes to the scope and requirements of the project that 

are discovered. 

 Providing a central contact between the customer’s project leaders, developers, trainers, IT staff, conversion staff, and other 

resources required throughout the transition period. 

 Installing the software and providing IT consultation for network, server, and workstation configuration and requirements. 

 Reviewing and addressing the specifications for needed customizations to meet customer needs (when applicable). 

  

 $40,750 

 

Implementation and Training 

 

 $1,000/day 

 

Services include: 

 

 Setting up users and user security rights for each application 

 Performing final process and procedure review 

 Configuring custom settings in each application to fit the needs of the customer 

 Setting up application integration and workflow methods 

 Onsite verification of converted data for balancing and auditing purposes 

 Training and Go-Live 

 

 Software Setup Days:  4  $4,000 

Financial Management Applications Days: 38  $38,000 

Personnel Management Applications Days: 15  $15,000 

Community Development Applications  Days:  30  $30,000 

Property Applications Days: 4  $4,000 

User Assistance Training Days: 8  $8,000 

 Total: 99 Subtotal $99,000 

 

 

Post-Go Live Assistance 

 

 Review and consult on streamlining day-to-day activities as they relate to the processes within the BS&A applications  

 Assist customers with more detailed and advanced report options available within the BS&A applications 

 Revisit commonly-used procedures discussed during training 

 As needs arise, provide assistance with bank reconciliations 

 $1,000/day 

 Days quoted are estimates; you are billed for actual days used 

 

Post-Go Live for all applications for which training was performed Days:  4  $4,000 

 

 

174



13 
 
 

Contingency 

 

Significant efforts are made by both parties to ensure that the scope of a project such as this is well-defined. Occasionally, 

unforeseen situations occur, such as customization requests for non-standard functionality, reporting or integration with a third-

party system, or the need for additional training due to process changes, staff changes, etc. In order to easily accommodate these 

situations during your project, BS&A recommends the establishment of a Contingency budget. The Contingency budget allows for 

unexpected situations to be addressed efficiently, without the need for additional council approval. 

Recommended Contingency                  $8,000 

 

Travel Expenses     $53,320 

 

 

 

          

 

 

175



14 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 

Maintenance and Support Fees 

 

Annual Service Fees  
Unlimited support during your first year with the program is included in your purchase price. Thereafter, Service Fees are billed 

annually in the quarter representing the anniversary date of the installation of the BSA Software Products, other than Permit 

Application Submission fees, to be billed quarterly based on the accumulation of fees.   

 

Financial Management  

$1,120 General Ledger .NET 

Accounts Payable .NET $950 

Cash Receipting .NET $950 

Miscellaneous Receivables .NET $950 

Purchase Order .NET $950 

Work Orders .NET $950 

Cemetery Management .NET $915 

Utility Billing .NET $2,500 

Personnel Management  

$1,230 Payroll .NET 

Human Resources .NET $1,120 

Community Development  

$1,400 Building Department .NET 

Field Inspection .NET $590 

Property  

$4,120 Tax .NET (Including Annual Import from County) 

Delinquent Personal Property .NET $950 

BS&A Online  

$755 Community Development* 

Financials $740 

Employee Self-Service $740 

Public Records Search $1,500 

Total Annual Service Fees $22,430 

 

* Online Permit Application Submissions carry an additional fee of $2 per application submitted, to be billed quarterly. 

  

176



15 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 

Support Call Process 

 

BSA’s standard hours for telephone support are from 8:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. (Eastern Time), Monday through Friday, excluding 

holidays. 

You can lodge a support request in three ways: (i) Contact Customer Support option located within the Help menu of all of our 

applications (ii) our toll-free support line (1-855-BSA-SOFT) or via email. 

BSA targets less than thirty (30) minutes for initial response (“Initial Response Target”). 

. 

Customer service requests fall into four main categories: 

A. Technical.  Questions or usage issues relating to I.T. functionality, future hardware purchases, and configuration.  BSA 

tries to resolve these issues within BSA’s Initial Response Target or as soon thereafter as reasonably possible. 

B. Questions/Support.  General questions regarding functionality, use, and set-up of the applications.  BSA tries to resolve 

these issues within BSA’s Initial Response Target or as soon thereafter as reasonably possible. 

C. Requests.  Customer requests for future enhancements to the applications.  Key product management personnel meet 

with development staff on a regular basis to discuss the desirability and priority of such requests.  BSA tries to resolve 

these issues within BSA’s Initial Response Target or as soon thereafter as reasonably possible. 

D. Issues/Bugs.  Errors fall into three (3) subcategories: 

i. Critical.  Cases where an Error has rendered the application or a material component unusable or not usable 

without substantial inconvenience causing material and detrimental consequences to business -- with no viable 

Customer workaround or alternative.  The targeted resolution time for critical issues is less than one (1) day. 

ii. Moderate.  Cases where an Error causes inconvenience and added burden, but the application is still usable by 

Customer.  The targeted resolution time for all moderate issues is within two (2) weeks, which is within our standard 

update cycle. 

iii. Minimal.  Cases that are mostly cosmetic in nature, and do not impede functionality in any significant way. These 

issues are assigned a priority level at our regular meetings, and resolution times are based on the specified priority. 

 

Remote Support Process 

Some support calls may require further analysis of Customer’s database or set-up to diagnose a problem or to assist Customer 

with a question.  BSA’s remote support tools share Customer’s desktop via the Internet to provide Customer with virtual on-site 

support.  BSA’s support team is able to quickly connect remotely to Customer’s desktop and view its setup, diagnose problems, or 

assist Customer with screen navigation. 

 

 

 

 

177



1 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

Statement of Work 

Statement of Work 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Winterville, NC 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for: Anthony Bowers 

 Town of Winterville, NC 

 

178



2 
 
 

Prepared by: Kevin Schafer, Account Executive 

 BS&A Software 

 

Date: February 17, 2020 

Version: 1 

Revision: 1.1 

Status: Draft 

  

179



3 
 
 

Table of Contents 

1. Contact List ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................4 

2. Key Data from Proposal ................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

3. Activities and Deliverables .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 45 
3.1 GL/Budgeting ............................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.2 Cash Receipting .......................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.3 Accounts Payable ....................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.4 Purchase Order ........................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.5 Fixed Assets .................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.6 Miscellaneous Receivables ..................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.7 Payroll ............................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.8 Human Resources ...................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.9 Timesheets .................................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.10 Utility Billing ............................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.11 Work Order ................................................................................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
3.12 Inventory Management ........................................................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

3.13 Building Department .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10 
3.14 Field Inspection .................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10 
3.15 AccessMyGov-Building Department ........................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

 

4. Delivery Method ................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
4.1 Generalized Approach.............................................................................................................................................................................................................7 
4.2 Detailed Schedule ...................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
4.3 Gantt Chart ................................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

5. Project Management Process ....................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
5.1 Organization – Roles and Responsibilities .................................................................................................................................................................. 42 
5.2 Change Control ........................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
5.3 RAID Management .................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

6. Review and Approval .................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 49 

7. Appendix ................................................................................................................................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
7.1 Change Request Form.............................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 

Table of Figures 

Figure 1: Delivery Process Overview ..............................................................................................................................................................................................8 

Figure 2: Delivery Process - Execute Phase .................................................................................................................................................................................8 

Figure 3: Change Control Procedure .............................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 

  

180



4 
 
 

1 Contact List 
 

This section provides the list of key contacts for both BS&A Software and Town of  Winterville : 

 

 
BS&A Contacts 

 

Name Email Cell 

Kevin Schafer kschafer@bsasoftware.com 517.881.6445 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Winterville Contacts 

 

Name Email Cell 

Anthony Bower Anthony.bowers@wintervillenc.come  

 

 

 

 

  

181

mailto:kschafer@bsasoftware.com


5 
 
 

2 Project Overview 

Overview 

BS&A Software has over 900 customers on our Financial Management, Payroll, Utility 

Billing, and Community Development software. These customers range from small 

municipalities with hundreds of people to large municipalities that have over 100,000 

residents. All of our programs are built with the Microsoft .NET software development 

platform using the latest tools available. Our software uses Microsoft SQL as the database 

engine. BS&A programs currently provide all of the major functions requested.  

BS&A Benefits 

For over 30 years, our trademark has been to provide great software and world-class customer 

service. You will quickly learn why BS&A has grown so positively through the worst of 

economic times; we are first and foremost concerned with long-term customer relationships. 

* Customer Support & Satisfaction – BS&A believes that customer satisfaction is critical to 

the long-term success of any company. We are so confident in what our existing customers 

have to say that we provide a complete client list on our website. Feel free to contact any of 

our existing customers. If they do not say that we provide the absolute best customer support, 

choose another vendor. 

* Site License: As a standard process, BS&A provides each municipality with a site license, 

whereby they can run our software on an unlimited number of desktops or with an unlimited 

number of concurrent users. This makes it practical to provide access to BS&A software to as 

many users and departments as desired without incurring any additional license costs. 

* Data Conversion: BS&A sets the bar in terms of data conversion efficiency, and minimizes 

efforts on the Town’s part. We simply require you to get us data in a readable, defined format, 

and we take over from there. Whether you choose to convert all of your data or just the critical 

components, BS&A will not produce any surprise or additional data conversion fees, unless 

changes to the scope of the conversions are requested. 

* Integrations: BS&A provides out of the box and user configurable integrations for a large 

number of required systems (Banks, State Government, IRS, Benefit Providers, Purchasing 

Cards, etc.) We do not charge any extra fees for these integrations and, in most cases, we will 

create similar integrations at no cost. 

* Project Management: BS&A representatives will deliver the implementation services for all 

of the proposed applications. BS&A will assume the role of primary contractor and will 

assume project management responsibilities. Our Project Managers, along with our 

Implementation & Training staff, have been involved in hundreds of successful projects 

similar to the Town’s. 

182



6 
 
 

3 Scope 
The following components, including any tasks inherent or necessary in providing the components shall be 

considered a part of the project scope. BS&A and the Customer shall work together to implement the project 

components to satisfy the functional requirements identified in Exhibit E to this agreement. 

A. Software Scope 
The following software shall be considered in scope for this project. 

General Ledger .NET Accounts Payable .NET Work Orders .NET Utility Billing .NET Payroll .NET 

Cash Receipting 
.NET 

Miscellaneous 
Receivables .NET 

Purchase Order 
.NET 

Cemetery 
Management .NET 

Human Resources 
.NET 

Building 
Department .NET 

Field Inspection .NET Tax .NET Delinquent 
Personal Property 
.NET 

BS&A Online Public 
Records Search 

BS&A Online 
Community 
Development 

BS&A Online 
Financials 

BS&A Online 
Employee Self 
Service 

  

 

B. Data Conversions 
Data conversions expected as part of the project scope are listed in 

General Ledger 
(COA, Balances, 
Budget, up to 10 
Years Transaction 
History) 

Accounts Payable 
(Vendors, up to 10 
Years Invoice and 
Check History) 

Cash Receipting 
(Receipt Items, up 
to 10 years Receipt 
History) 

Payroll (Database 
Setup, Employee 
detail and YTD, up 
to 10 years Check 
History) 

Human Resources 
(Position/Status 
History, Positions, 
Licenses) 

Cemetery 
Management (Plot, 
Owner and 
Occupant Data) 

Utility Billing 
(Account, Meter 
information, up to 
10 years Billing and 
Payment History) 

Building 
Department 
(Parcels, Properties, 
Owners, 
Contractors, Permit 
History) 

Miscellaneous 
Receivables (Setup 
of Billing 
Items/Penalties) 

Work Orders (Setup 
of Work Order 
Types, Facilities, 
Assets, Equipment, 
Materials, Workers) 

Delinquent Personal 
Property (Parcels, 
Owners, up to 3 
years billing and 
Payment History) 

    

 

C. Reporting 
BS&A will work with the Town to utilize standard reporting features throughout the software. In addition, the 

Town plans to take advantage of all standard reporting tools, ad-hoc reporting tools, and other “out of the box” 

capabilities for accessing BS&A data. BS&A will include analysis and recommendations for reporting within each 

module and applicable deliverable.  The following custom reports are also in scope 

     

     

183



7 
 
 

 

D. Interfaces / Exports / Imports 
The Town expects to include the following interfaces as part of this project. Final interface scope, including 

requirements for each interface will be confirmed as part of the X stage of the project. 

Import into Building 
Department system 
to populate parcels, 
properties and 
current owners 
(recurring import, 
one time cost) 

Import to Tax 
system from County 
Tax Roll (recurring 
import, annual cost) 

   

     

 

E. Modifications 
 

The only software modifications in scope for this project are the custom interfaces and exports listed above. 

 

 

4 Implementation Approach  
 

 

This section describes the method that BS&A Software will use to deliver this project to the Town of Winterville. This method is 

described in terms of the generalized approach and as a detailed schedule. 

 

Generalized Approach 
 

BS&A Software will use a three-phase approach to fulfill the needs of the Town. 

Phase 1 – Plan 

This document represents the beginning phases of the plan for the work to be undertaken by providing an 

outline of the tasks to be completed.  More detailed planning, in regards to scheduling, as well as confirming 

and specifying the details of tasks to be undertaken will be completed following the receipt of a signed 

proposal. 

 

Phase 2 – Execute 

This phase encompasses all of the activity necessary to bring into operation the applications provided by 

BS&A Software and the associated training.  Action Items. Business Process Decisions, Interfaces, 

Modifications, and change orders will be tracked in the Project Master Excel Workbook. 

Phase 3 – Close 

This phase provides a formal conclusion of the project and the handover to BS&A’s support team. 

 

 

184



8 
 
 

Figure 1: Delivery Process Overview 

 

This diagram shows the general approach that BS&A Software will follow to deliver this project. 

 

 

Figure 2: Delivery Process - Execute Phase 

 
 

During the Execute Phase of the project, BS&A will …..  

Establish BS&A Databases – During this phase, BS&A and the Town will work together to extract the necessary data from the 

Town’s existing software, along with corroborating reports to ensure an accurate conversion.  BS&A will develop preliminary 

conversions of the Town’s data, and perform Quality Control and balancing processes of this data.  BS&A and Town will review 

the preliminary converted data, so that additional changes can be made to the conversion routines.  Finally, BS&A will perform 

final conversions, at the point of Cutover, utilizing the feedback provided by the Town.  

 

Establish BS&A Processes – BS&A and the Town will review the Town’s current processes, within the existing software, and 

work together to determine how to perform the tasks vital to the Town’s operations within the BS&A Software system using best 

practices. 

 

Install and Cutover – At the time of ‘go-live’ within the BS&A Software systems, BS&A will extract a final copy of the Town’s 

legacy data, for final conversion.  Only data properly entered in the Town’s legacy system prior to this extraction will be 

contained in the final data conversion.  After performing a final data conversion, and quality control of the converted data, BS&A 

will perform additional setup tasks in the converted data necessary to effect the delivery of databases to allow for the use of the 

BS&A Software as determined when establishing BS&A processes. 

 

Train Customer Staff – Depending on the final schedule, as determined during the planning process, BS&A staff will work with 

Town staff to transfer knowledge on the use of the BS&A Software products.  Portions of this process will be performed using 

the preliminary data conversions, while additional training will be performed and completed during the final cutover/go-live 

process. 

P3.1

Establish BS&A 
Database

P3.2

Establish BS&A 
Process

P3.3

Install and Cutover

P3.4

Train Customer 
Staff

Signed 

Data Conversion 

Approach

Implementation 
Project Manager

Acknowledged

Cutover Complete 

Certificate

Customer

Signed 

BS&A Process

Trainer

Acknowledged 
Cutover 

Complete 
Certificate

IT

Statement 
of Work

Process Implications

for BS&A Database

Database 
Architect

Acknowledged 
Training 

Complete 
Certificate

Signed BS&A 

Database

 

185



9 
 
 

 

 

Establish BS&A Database 

In the Establish BS&A Database phase, BS&A will extract the data along with corresponding reports with the 

assistance of the Town, prepare preliminary databases and review these with the Town for any conversions 

included in the scope of this project.  These databases will include the converted data as well as configuration 

setup completed by BS&A with the confirmation of the Town. Databases to be used at go-live will contain any 

changes noted during the data reviews along with the final agreed upon configuration.  Each database will go 

through a quality control process which will include formal balancing against reports from the current system. 

 

Tasks 

Task BS&A Role Town Role Expected Duration 
Task Name • What is BS&A Responsible 

for? 
• What is Town 

Responsible for? 

Approx 
days/months/weeks/ 

Extract Preliminary General 
Ledger Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

Extract corroborating General 
Ledger Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary General 
Ledger Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 
provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

N/A 4 weeks 

Perform preliminary General 
Ledger Conversion Quality 
Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 

N/A 1 day 

186



10 
 
 

portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

Perform Preliminary General 
Ledger Data Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

Extract Preliminary Cash 
Receipting Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

Extract Corroborating Cash 
Receipting Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary Cash 
Receipting Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 
provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

N/A 4 weeks 

Perform Preliminary Cash 
Receipting Conversion Quality 
Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 

N/A 1 day 

187



11 
 
 

discussion during the data 
review process. 

Perform Cash Receipting Data 
Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

Extract Preliminary Accounts 
Payable Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

Extract Corroborating Accounts 
Payable Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary Accounts 
Payable Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 
provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

N/A 4 weeks 

Perform Accounts Payable 
Conversion Quality Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

N/A 1 day 

188



12 
 
 

Perform Accounts Payable Data 
Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

Gather Accounts Payable Check 
Format(s) 

BS&A will gather copies of 
the Town’s check stock, and 
desired output 

Town will provide 
requested copies of 
Check Stock, and 
description of 
information to be 
printed on checks. 

1 day 

Gather Preliminary Purchase 
Order Reports 

BS&A will gather Reports 
from Town’s Purchase Order 
system, to facilitate setup of 
integration with other 
applications 

Town will provide 
data necessary for 
BS&A to configure 
the Purchase Order 
application to be 
integrated with 
other applications. 

1 day 

Gather Purchase Order Format BS&A will gather copies of 
the Town’s Purchase Order 
format. 

Town will provide 
requested copies of 
Purchase Orders, 
and description of 
the data elements 
present on the 
Purchase Order 
form. 

1 day 

Gather Preliminary 
Miscellaneous Receivables 
Reports and Data for Setup 
purposes 

BS&A will gather Reports 
from Town’s Miscellaneous 
Receivables system, to 
facilitate setup of a 
Miscellaneous Receivables 
Database, which can be used 
to perform billing tasks. 

Town will provide 
requested data for 
BS&A to setup a 
database capable of 
performing future 
billing for 
Miscellaneous 
Receivables. 

1 day 

    

Gather Miscellaneous 
Receivables Invoice Format(s) 

BS&A will gather copies of 
the Town’s Miscellaneous 
Invoice format(s). 

Town will provide 
requested copies of 
Invoice Format(s), 
and description of 
the data elements 
present on the 
Invoice form. 

1 day 

189



13 
 
 

Extract Preliminary Payroll Data BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

Extract Corroborating Payroll 
Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary Payroll Data 
Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 
provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

N/A 4 weeks 

Determine necessary Payroll Data 
Setup 

BS&A will determine the 
necessary manual steps 
beyond the conversion 
process, which are necessary 
to provide a complete 
database at the time of final 
cutover. 

N/A 2 weeks 

Perform Preliminary Payroll 
Conversion Quality Control  

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

N/A 1 week 

Perform Payroll Data Review BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 

1 day 

190



14 
 
 

clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

Gather Payroll Check Format(s) BS&A will gather copies of 
the Town’s check stock, and 
desired output 

Town will provide 
requested copies of 
Payroll Check 
Form(s), and 
description of the 
data elements 
present on the 
Check format(s). 

1 day 

Duplicate Payroll BS&A will run a payroll in the 
converted data, in order to 
identify and address any 
calculation differences 
between the converted data, 
and the Town’s legacy 
system. 

N/A 1 week 

Test Payroll Journalization BS&A will perform a trial 
journalization of a Payroll 
within the converted data, in 
order to ensure the 
appropriate setup of 
accounting information in the 
Payroll Application. 

N/A 1 day 

Extract Preliminary Human 
Resources Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

Extract Corroborating Human 
Resources Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary Human 
Resources Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 

N/A 4 weeks 

191



15 
 
 

provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

Perform Preliminary Human 
Resources Conversion Quality 
Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

N/A 1 week 

Perform Human Resources Data 
Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

Extract Preliminary Utility Billing 
Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

Extract Corroborating Utility 
Billing Reports and Screenshots 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

    

Develop Preliminary Utility Billing 
Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 

N/A 6 weeks 

192



16 
 
 

provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

Perform Utility Billing Conversion 
Quality Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

N/A 1 week 

Perform Utility Billing Data 
Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

Gather Preliminary Work Order 
Data and Reports for Setup 
Purposes 

BS&A will gather Reports 
from Town’s Work Order 
system, to facilitate setup of 
a Work Order Database. 

Town will provide 
requested data for 
BS&A to setup a 
database capable of 
performing future  
Work Order 
processes. 

1 day 

Gather Work Order Format(s) BS&A will gather copies of 
the Town’s Work Order 
form(s), and desired output 

Town will provide 
requested copies of 
Work Order 
Format(s), and 
description of the 
data elements 
present on the 
form. 

1 day 

Extract Preliminary Building 
Department Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

193



17 
 
 

Extract Corroborating Building 
Department Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Gather Format Information for 
Custom Import of Building 
Department Parcels, Properties 
and Owners 

BS&A will gather a copy of 
the file, as well as an 
available file specifications, 
and work with the Town to 
determine the appropriate 
data mapping for this import. 

Town will provide 
BS&A a copy of the 
file to be used for 
this import, as well 
as any available file 
specifications and a 
description of the 
contained data. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary Building 
Department Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 
provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

N/A 4 weeks 

Perform Building Department 
Conversion Quality Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

N/A 1 week 

Perform Building Department 
Data Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

Develop Custom Building 
Department Import of Parcel, 
Property and Owner Data 

BS&A will create a Custom 
Import, capable of importing 
the desired information, 

N/A 1 day 

194



18 
 
 

according to the 
specifications and format 
provided by the Town. 

Extract Preliminary Cemetery 
Management Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 
into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary Cemetery 
Management Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 
provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

N/A 2 weeks 

Perform Cemetery Management 
Conversion Quality Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

N/A 2 days 

Perform Cemetery Management 
Data Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

Extract Preliminary Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax Data 

BS&A will provide resources 
with knowledge of many 
various database formats, 
especially those that are 
capable of providing data for 
BS&A to perform 
conversions. 

Town will provide 
the necessary 
technical resources, 
and security access 
in order to access 
existing data, and 
extract the data 

1 day 

195



19 
 
 

into a format usable 
by BS&A. 

Extract Corroborating Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff, to determine the 
appropriate reports to be 
produced for balancing and 
confirmation purposes. 

Town will provide 
reports, as directed 
by BS&A, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Gather Format Information for 
Custom Import of Tax Data from 
County 

BS&A will gather a copy of 
the file, as well as an 
available file specifications, 
and work with the Town to 
determine the appropriate 
data mapping for this import. 

Town will provide 
BS&A a copy of the 
file to be used for 
this import, as well 
as any available file 
specifications and a 
description of the 
contained data. 

1 day 

Develop Preliminary Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax Conversion 

BS&A will develop the 
necessary automated 
processes and routines 
necessary to translate the 
data from the format 
provided by the Town, into 
the BS&A database. 

N/A 3 weeks 

Perform Delinquent Personal 
Property Tax Conversion Quality 
Control 

BS&A will review the 
converted data, in 
comparison to the data 
supplied by the Town, as well 
as the corroborating reports, 
in order to ensure balancing 
and proper conversion of 
data, and to determine any 
portions of the conversion 
which may require additional 
discussion during the data 
review process. 

N/A 1 week 

Perform Delinquent Personal 
Property Tax Data Review 

BS&A will review the 
converted data with Town 
staff, highlighting areas for 
the Town to review, or 
confirm, in cases where the 
appropriate result will not be 
clear from the data/reports 
alone. 

Town will review 
the data, both with 
BS&A’s assistance, 
as well as perform 
additional review 
and evaluation of 
data as necessary to 
address questions, 
or to familiarize 
Town staff with 
expected output of 
converted data. 

1 day 

196



20 
 
 

Develop Import of Tax Data from 
County 

BS&A will create a Custom 
Import, capable of importing 
the desired information, 
according to the 
specifications and format 
provided by the Town. 

N/A 2 days 

Deliverables 

BS&A will complete the following deliverables during this phase and submit to the Town for review and 

acceptance:  

1) Preliminary and Final Databases 

2) Configure databases based on Business Process decisions 

3) List of data review items 

4) Reports used for balancing 

 

Acceptance Criteria / Outcomes  

At the completion of this phase, the Town will… 

1) Confirm databases balance prior to Go-Live with the assistance of BS&A 

2) Confirm configuration is based on the agreed upon processes, as well as feedback from data reviews. 

3) Retain copies of final balanced reports for audit purposes 

Establish BS&A Process 

In the Establish BS&A Process phase, BS&A will conduct discovery meetings to review current processes in place 

by the Town and make recommendations based on best practices with respect to how these process will be 

handled in BS&A.  The Town will identify module leads to assist BS&A with this discovery process.  Process 

decisions will be documented on the Business Process Decisions worksheet within the Project Master Excel 

Workbook. 

 

Tasks 

Task BS&A Role Town Role Expected Duration 
Task Name • What is BS&A Responsible 

for? 
• What is Town 

Responsible for? 

Approx 
days/months/weeks/ 

Review Current General Ledger 
Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current General Ledger 
processes and expectations.  
These may include, but are 
not limited to… 
-Chart of Accounts Analysis 
-Budget process and timing 
-Bank Reconciliation process 
  and timing 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

197



21 
 
 

-Pooled Cash Environments 
-Funds with different Fiscal 
  Year Ends 
-Project Accounting 
-Grant Accounting 

Review BS&A General Ledger 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
General Ledger application 
with Town, in order to 
identify aspects of the 
program that will be used, 
and determine processes for 
future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A General Ledger 
Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Cash Receipting 
Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Cash Receipting 
processes and expectations.  
These may include, but are 
not limited to… 
-Number of receipting 
stations 
-Confirmation of receipting 
hardware requirements 
-Discussion of any needed 
application interfaces 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Cash Receipting 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Cash Receipting application 
with Town, in order to 
identify aspects of the 
program that will be used, 
and determine processes for 
future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

198



22 
 
 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Cash Receipting 
Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Accounts Payable 
Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Accounts Payable 
processes and expectations.  
These may include, but are 
not limited to… 
-Invoice Entry process and 
timing 
-Invoice Approval process 
-Check run process and 
timing 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Accounts Payable 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Accounts Payable application 
with Town, in order to 
identify aspects of the 
program that will be used, 
and determine processes for 
future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Accounts 
Payable Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Purchase Order 
Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Purchase Order 

Town will provide 
information on 

1 day 

199



23 
 
 

processes and expectations.  
These may include, but are 
not limited to… 
-Requisition Entry process 
-Purchasing policy 
-Approval workflow 
-Bidding 
-Receiving 
-Year End process 

current processes 
to BS&A 

Review BS&A Purchase Order 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Purchase Order application 
with Town, in order to 
identify aspects of the 
program that will be used, 
and determine processes for 
future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Purchase Order 
Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Miscellaneous 
Receivables Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Miscellaneous 
Receivables processes and 
expectations.  These may 
include, but are not limited 
to… 
-Invoice Entry process 
-Billing frequency 
-Penalties 
-ACH Payments 
-Handling of delinquent 
balances 
-Any required application 
interfaces 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Miscellaneous 
Receivables Application 
functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Miscellaneous Receivables 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 

1 day 

200



24 
 
 

application with Town, in 
order to identify aspects of 
the program that will be 
used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Miscellaneous 
Receivables Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Payroll Process BS&A will review with Town 
the current Payroll processes 
and expectations.  These may 
include, but are not limited 
to… 
-Number of employees 
-Departments 
-Active/inactive employees 
-Pay frequencies 
-Hourly vs. Salary 
-Allocation Tables 
-Bargaining Unit Impact 
-Pay Structures/rate tables 
-Direct Deposit 
-Shift work/overtime 
-Leave policies 
-Workers Compensation 
-Equipment Rental 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Payroll Application 
functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Payroll application with 
Town, in order to identify 
aspects of the program that 
will be used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

201



25 
 
 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Payroll Process BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Human 
Resources Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Human Resources 
processes and expectations.  
These may include, but are 
not limited to… 
-Benefit Plans 
-License/Certification tracking 
-Personnel Action Forms 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Human Resources 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Human Resources application 
with Town, in order to 
identify aspects of the 
program that will be used, 
and determine processes for 
future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Human 
Resources Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Utility Billing 
Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Utility Billing 
processes and expectations.  

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

202



26 
 
 

These may include, but are 
not limited to… 
-Billing frequency and timing 
-Read file interfaces 
-Bill printing process 
-Payment process 
-Delinquent balance process 
-Work Orders 
-Any required application 
interfaces 

Review BS&A Utility Billing 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Utility Billing application with 
Town, in order to identify 
aspects of the program that 
will be used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Utility Billing 
Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Work Order 
Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Work Order 
processes and expectations.  
These may include, but are 
not limited to… 
-Activities handled through 
Work Orders 
-Workflow 
-Any required application 
interfaces 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Work Order 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Work Order application with 
Town, in order to identify 
aspects of the program that 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 

1 day 

203



27 
 
 

will be used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Work Order 
Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Building 
Department Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Building 
Department processes and 
expectations.  These may 
include, but are not limited 
to… 
-Permits 
-Code Enforcements 
-Bonds/Escrows 
-Inspections 
-Planning/Zoning/Engineering 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Building 
Department Application 
functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Building Department 
application with Town, in 
order to identify aspects of 
the program that will be 
used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

204



28 
 
 

Document BS&A Building 
Department Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Field Inspection 
Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Field Inspection 
processes and expectations.   

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Field Inspection 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Field Inspection application 
with Town, in order to 
identify aspects of the 
program that will be used, 
and determine processes for 
future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Field Inspection 
Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Cemetery 
Management Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Cemetery 
Management processes and 
expectations.   

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Cemetery 
Management Application 
functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Cemetery Management 
application with Town, in 
order to identify aspects of 
the program that will be 
used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 

1 day 

205



29 
 
 

future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

Document BS&A Cemetery 
Management Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Tax Process BS&A will review with Town 
the current Tax processes 
and expectations. 

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Tax Application 
functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Tax application with Town, in 
order to identify aspects of 
the program that will be 
used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 
the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

1 day 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Tax Process BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

Review Current Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax Process 

BS&A will review with Town 
the current Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax 
processes and expectations.   

Town will provide 
information on 
current processes 
to BS&A 

1 day 

Review BS&A Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax 
Application functionality 

BS&A will review the 
available functionality of the 
Delinquent Personal Property 
Tax application with Town, in 
order to identify aspects of 
the program that will be 
used, and determine 
processes for future use. 

Town will provide 
input and feedback 
to BS&A, as we 
collaborate to 
determine the 
appropriate future 
state to meet the 
Town’s needs with 

1 day 

206



30 
 
 

the BS&A Software 
functionality. 

Define BS&A Process and training 
requirements 

BS&A and Town will make 
decisions based on available 
BS&A functionality, and 
current Town processes, for 
future state of Town 
processes within the BS&A 
Software products.  Any 
adjustments to the training 
schedule will also be made at 
this point. 

Town will work with 
BS&A to finalize 
plans for 
configuration and 
review breakdown 
of training approach 
and appropriate 
personnel to be 
trained. 

1 day 

Document BS&A Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax Process 

BS&A will document the 
process decisions made, to 
ensure that training follows 
these decisions. 

Town will review 
business process 
decisions 

1 day 

 

Deliverables 

BS&A will complete the following deliverables during this phase and submit to the Town for review and 

acceptance:  

LIST DELIVERABLES 

1) Process review guide 

2) Action Item List 

3) Business Process 

4) Status calls as needed 

5) Setup item templates for items not being converted 

 

Acceptance Criteria / Outcomes  

At the completion of this phase, the Town will… 

1) Ensure Action Items assigned to Town resources are resolved by the due date 

2) Confirm business processes documented are in alignment with Town’s understanding 

3) Participate in status calls as needed 

 

 

Install and Cutover 

 

In the Install and Cutover phase, BS&A will work the Town’s IT to install the BS&A applications and Microsoft SQL.  

Final data will be extracted, converted and balanced by BS&A with assistance of resources from the Town. 

207



31 
 
 

 

Tasks 

Task BS&A Role Town Role Expected Duration 
Task Name • What is BS&A Responsible 

for? 
• What is Town 

Responsible for? 

Approx 
days/months/weeks/ 

Install the BS&A Applications on 
Town Server and workstations 

BS&A will provide installation 
packages for the BS&A 
Software applications, as well 
as IT resources familiar with 
the installation process, to 
perform installation 
processes. 

Town will provide IT 
resources, with the 
necessary security 
access to perform 
installations. 

1 day 

Extract Final General Ledger Data BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Extract Final Corroborating 
Reports for General Ledger 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff to retrieve reports to be 
used for final balancing 
purposes. 

Town will provide 
updated reports, as 
directed by BS&A 
for preliminary 
balancing, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Perform Final General Ledger 
Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of General Ledger 
Data. 

N/A 1 day 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

Build GL Banks and Cash Account 
Associations 

BS&A will setup necessary 
bank accounts, and associate 
these accounts to the proper 
Cash Accounts in the General 
Ledger Database 

N/A 1 day 

Setup due to/due from rules BS&A will setup necessary 
due to/due from rules, in 
order to support the Town’s 
preferred use of the system. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Final Conversion of 
General Ledger Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted General Ledger 
data on the Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

208



32 
 
 

Extract Final Cash Receipting 
Data 

BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Extract Final Corroborating 
Reports for Cash Receipting 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff to retrieve reports to be 
used for final balancing 
purposes. 

Town will provide 
updated reports, as 
directed by BS&A 
for preliminary 
balancing, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Perform Final Cash Receipting 
Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of Cash Receipting 
Data. 

N/A 1 day 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Final Conversion of Cash 
Receipting Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted Cash Receipting 
data on the Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Extract Final Accounts Payable 
Data 

BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Extract Final Accounts Payable 
Corroborating Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff to retrieve reports to be 
used for final balancing 
purposes. 

Town will provide 
updated reports, as 
directed by BS&A 
for preliminary 
balancing, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Perform Final Accounts Payable 
Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of Accounts 
Payable Data. 

N/A 1 day 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

209



33 
 
 

Restore Final Conversion of 
Accounts Payable Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted Accounts Payable 
data on the Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Restore Accounts Payable Check 
Format(s) 

 Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Establish blank Purchase Order 
Database 

BS&A will establish a blank 
Purchase Order database on 
the Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Restore Purchase Order 
Format(s) 

 Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Setup Final Miscellaneous 
Receivables Database 

BS&A will setup Billing Items 
and Penalties Miscellaneous 
Receivables data. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Miscellaneous 
Receivables Setup Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
setup Miscellaneous 
Receivables data on the 
Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Restore Miscellaneous 
Receivables Invoice Format(s) 

 Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Extract Final Payroll/Human 
Resources Data 

BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Extract Final Payroll/Human 
Resources Corroborating Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff to retrieve reports to be 
used for final balancing 
purposes. 

Town will provide 
updated reports, as 
directed by BS&A 
for preliminary 
balancing, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

210



34 
 
 

Perform Final Payroll/Human 
Resources Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of Payroll/Human 
Resources Data. 

N/A 1 day 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Final Conversion of 
Payroll/Human Resources 
Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted Payroll/Human 
Resources data on the 
Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Restore Payroll Check Format(s)  Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Extract Final Utility Billing Data BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Extract Final Utility Billing 
Corroborating Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff to retrieve reports to be 
used for final balancing 
purposes. 

Town will provide 
updated reports, as 
directed by BS&A 
for preliminary 
balancing, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Perform Final Utility Billing 
Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of Utility Billing 
Data. 

N/A 1 day 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Final Conversion of 
Utility Billing Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted Utility Billing data 
on the Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Restore Utility Billing Bill 
Format(s) 

 Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Perform Work Order Database 
Setup 

BS&A will setup work order 
types, facilities, assets, 

N/A 1 day 

211



35 
 
 

equipment, materials and 
workers Work Order data. 

Restore Work Order Setup 
Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
setup Work Order data on 
the Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Restore Work Order Format(s)  Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Extract Final Building Department 
Data 

BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Extract Final Building Department 
Corroborating Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff to retrieve reports to be 
used for final balancing 
purposes. 

Town will provide 
updated reports, as 
directed by BS&A 
for preliminary 
balancing, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Perform Final Building 
Department Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of Building 
Department Data. 

N/A 1 day 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Final Conversion of 
Building Department Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted Building 
Department data on the 
Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Extract Final Cemetery 
Management Data 

BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Perform Final Cemetery 
Management Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of Cemetery 
Management Data. 

N/A 1 day 

212



36 
 
 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Final Conversion of 
Cemetery Management Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted Cemetery 
Management data on the 
Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Extract Final Delinquent Personal 
Property Tax Data 

BS&A will work with Town to 
extract a final copy of the 
data to be converted, 
following the steps 
established during the 
preliminary data extraction. 

Town will provide 
necessary technical 
and security access 
to extract data from 
existing system. 

1 day 

Extract Final Delinquent Personal 
Property Tax Corroborating 
Reports 

BS&A will work with Town 
staff to retrieve reports to be 
used for final balancing 
purposes. 

Town will provide 
updated reports, as 
directed by BS&A 
for preliminary 
balancing, in an 
electronic format, 
to be used for 
balancing and 
confirmation 
purposes. 

1 day 

Perform Final Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax Conversion 

BS&A will perform final 
conversion of Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax Data. 

N/A 1 day 

Perform Quality Control Checks 
on Final Data Conversion 

BS&A will perform balancing 
and Quality Control processes 
on converted data. 

N/A 1 day 

Restore Final Conversion of 
Delinquent Personal Property Tax 
Database 

BS&A will restore the final 
converted Delinquent 
Personal Property Tax data 
on the Town’s servers. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

Establish blank Tax Database BS&A will establish a blank 
Tax database, to perform 
import of County Tax data for 
upcoming tax year. 

Town will provide 
security access to 
system to allow for 
data to be restored. 
 

1 day 

 

Deliverables 

BS&A will complete the following deliverables during this phase and submit to the Town for review and 

acceptance:  

1) Final databases 

2) Reports used for balancing purposes 

213



37 
 
 

 

Acceptance Criteria / Outcomes  

At the completion of this phase, the Town will… 

1) Review final balancing reports with BS&A team  

2) Retain final balancing reports for audit purposes 

Train Customer Staff 

In the Train Customer phase, BS&A will work with the Town to configure, train users on BS&A using the Town’s 

converted data, and implement the processes identified in the business process decisions.  BS&A will be onsite at 

go-live to assist the Town. 

 

Tasks 

Task BS&A Role Town Role Expected Duration 
Task Name • What is BS&A Responsible 

for? 
• What is Town 

Responsible for? 

Approx 
days/months/weeks/ 

Perform Software Setup BS&A will work with 
customer to perform tasks 
such as user setup, workflow 
(approval) setup, and 
confirmation of technical and 
application based option 
configuration 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff, as well as 
information 
required to 
complete the Setup 
tasks. 

4 days 

Perform General Ledger Training BS&A will perform training on 
the General Ledger 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

4 days 

Perform Accounts Payable 
Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the Accounts Payable 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 

3 days 

214



38 
 
 

training decision is 
necessary. 

Perform Cash Receipting Training BS&A will perform training on 
the Cash Receipting 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

3 days 

Perform Miscellaneous 
Receivables Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the Miscellaneous 
Receivables application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

2 days 

Perform Purchase Order Training BS&A will perform training on 
the Purchase Order 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

3 days 

Perform Work Order Training BS&A will perform training on 
the Work Order application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

3 days 

215



39 
 
 

Perform BS&A Online – Financials 
Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the BS&A Online - Financials 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

1 day 

Perform Cemetery Management 
Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the Cemetery Management 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

1 day 

Perform Utility Billing Training BS&A will perform training on 
the Utility Billing application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

18 days 

Perform Payroll Training BS&A will perform training on 
the Payroll application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

10 days 

216



40 
 
 

Perform Human Resources 
Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the Human Resources 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

4 days 

Perform BS&A Online – Employee 
Self Service Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the BS&A Online – Employee 
Self Service application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

1 day 

Perform Building Department 
Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the Building Department 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

20 days 

Perform Field Inspection Training BS&A will perform training on 
the Field Inspection 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

8 days 

217



41 
 
 

Perform BS&A Online – 
Community Development 
Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the BS&A Online – 
Community Development 
application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

2 days 

Perform Tax Training BS&A will perform training on 
the Tax application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

4 days 

Perform Delinquent Personal 
Property Tax Training 

BS&A will perform training on 
the Delinquent Personal 
Property Tax application. 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
training, as well as 
access to the 
relevant decision 
makers in order to 
make 
determinations 
when a setup or 
training decision is 
necessary. 

1 day 

Perform User Assistance Training BS&A will assist Town with 
performance of User 
Acceptance Testing, as 
determine by the Town 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff for 
acceptance testing, 
as well as providing 
the testing 
scenarios necessary 
to perform the 
Acceptance Testing. 

8 days 

Perform Post Go-Live Assistance 
Training 

BS&A will perform follow-up 
training on the applications, 
in order to reinforce prior 
training, and answer 
additional questions or 

Town will provide 
necessary facilities 
and staff, as well as 
a listing of topics for 

4 

218



42 
 
 

concerns that have arisen as 
the Town has been using the 
applications in a live 
environment. 

follow up training 
purposes. 

* The expected duration for each Training activity is an estimate, based on current understanding the of Town’s business processes, and BS&A’s experience 

with similar sized customers in past implementations.  The amount of time devoted to each individual area may vary, as required to suit the Town’s needs. 

 

Deliverables 

BS&A will complete the following deliverables during this phase and submit to the Town for review and 

acceptance:  

1) Training/quick reference guides for end users 

2) Formats (i.e. checks, receipts, etc.) 

Acceptance Criteria / Outcomes  

At the completion of this phase, the Town will… 

1) Ensure necessary resources participate in implementation/training 

2) Review formats be prepared by BS&A 

 

Final Acceptance  

 

Upon completion of all implementation phases, customer will follow the process listed in the Agreement for Final Acceptance. 

5 Project Governance 
This section describes the following project management procedures that will be used to support the delivery of this project: 

 Organization 

 Change Control 

 RAID Management (Risk, Action, Issue, Decision) 

 

Organization – Roles and Responsibilities 
 

This subsection describes the organization that BS&A Software will use to support the delivery of this project. 

 

Project Specific Roles 

BS&A Software will use the following roles during the project: 

 Implementation Director 

` Has overall accountability for the project and provides a point of escalation for the 

customer. 

 Implementation Project Manager* 

` Has day-to-day accountability for the project. 

` Manages and coordinates all activities and resources associated with the project 

` Produces and maintains the Project Plan 

` Responsible for and leads the work associated with the development of the customer’s new 

processes. 

219



43 
 
 

 Project Management Analyst 

` Works with the ETL Developers on the conversion of the customer’s data to BS&A 

` Conduct quality control reviews of converted data 

 ETL Developer  

` Extract the customer data received 

` Transform the customer data into the BS&A format 

` Load the data into the BS&A databases 

 

 Implementation Specialist 

` Responsible for and leads the cutover and delivery of the training. 

` Develops training/quick reference guides 

 IT 

` Assists with the extraction of test and production data from the customer’s existing 

applications. 

` Responsible for the installation of the BS&A applications on the customer’s production 

environment. 

 Subject Matter Experts 

` May assist as required. 

 

Note: there may be a number of people fulfilling each role; i.e., Implementation Specialist may only implement/train on 

specific applications. 

 

 

*Note: Roles listed with an “*” are considered “Key Personnel” on the project.  For all individuals assigned to Key Personnel roles, 

BSA will provide Customer with resumes, including past project assignments, durations, and roles, at least thirty (30) days from 

the individual beginning work on the project. Additionally, unless for reasons outside of BSA’s control, BSA will not remove or re-

assign an individual filling the role of Key Personnel for the duration of the Agreement.  If Customer requests that BSA Key 

Personnel be removed from the project, BSA will provide resumes for replacement resource with sufficient time for Customer to 

contact references, or schedule interviews with Customer.  Customer acknowledges that in the event Key Personnel are removed, 

adjustments to the project schedule may be necessary. 

 

 

6 Project Management 
 

The BS&A Team is specifically trained, first and foremost, to take care of customers.  We are not satisfied unless your staff in 

pleased with your software choice.  The process is not complete without a solid implementation plan to follow.  Our 

Implementation process includes all of the services necessary to ensure a successful transition.  This includes Project Managers 

that understand your needs AND are Subject Matter Experts.   

Your assigned project managers will use a SharePoint site that is specifically for the Town’s project to collaborate with the Town.  

Town users will be given access to this SharePoint site.   A few of the items that will be located on the SharePoint site are: 

1) Schedules, Agendas and Contract Documents 

2) Project Master Spreadsheet 

3) Various templates for configuration 

220



44 
 
 

4) Implementation Schedule 

Project Status Calls 
The BS&A Project Manager will conduct project status calls as needed throughout the project. Project Status calls 
are intended for the Town stakeholders and project managers and will include: 

• Project Overview 

• Recently Completed Tasks 

• Upcoming Tasks 

• Overdue Tasks 

• Issues and Actions 

• Notes 

Action Item List 
BS&A and Town will maintain a list of actions (both open and closed) that have been identified for the Project and make list of 

issues available to all project stakeholders.  

 

Upon identification of Project actions and any related risks and key Project decisions, both Town and BS&A Project team 

members are responsible for adding the issue to the Action Item List.  For each identified issue, the following information will be 

captured: 

• Item/Issue 

• BS&A Application 

• Added by 

• Assigned to/Owner 

• Status update/notes 

• Link to Item(s) on SharePoint site 

• Date added 

• Date updated 

• Due date 

• Status 

• Critical 

• Notes 
 

Business Process Decisions 
BS&A and Town will maintain a list of business process decisions that have been identified for the Project and will make this list 

available to all project stakeholders. 

Upon identification of a business process decision, the BS&A Project team will document the decision on the business process 

decision list.  Each decision will be reviewed with the Town for their confirmation.  For each identified decision, the following 

information will we captured: 

• Business Process Decision 

• BS&A Application 

• Assigned to/Owner 

• Status update/notes 

• Link to Item(s) on SharePoint site 

• Date added 

• Date updated/confirmed 

• Due date 

• Status 

• Critical 

  

 
 

221



45 
 
 

 

7 Facility and IT Requirements 
 

In the event that group training will be conducted, the Town will be responsible for providing a training lab environment that 

allows for up to 10 users to participate in a single session. 

8 Delivery Method 
 

Detailed Schedule – Note, approximate schedule included for example purposes only.  
Actual schedule will be determined in collaboration between BS&A Project Manager, and 
Customer, following contract execution. 

 

Task Responsible Parties 

(Bold is Primary) 

Start  Duration 

  Initiation Activities 

Conduct Kick-off Meeting BS&A and Town 1 month post signing 1 day 

Review Project Scope and Project 

Management Process 

BS&A 1 month post signing 1 day 

Establish Project Meeting Schedule BS&A and Town 1 month post signing 1 day 

Assemble BS&A Project Team BS&A 1.5 months post signing 1 day 

Assemble Town Project Team Town 1.5 months post signing 1 day 

Create Initial Project Timeline BS&A & Town 1.5 months post signing 1 day 

IT and Data Conversion Activities 

Meet with Town IT Staff to review Hardware 

Configurations 

BS&A and Town 5 months pre go-live 1 day 

Extract Preliminary Data from current System BS&A and Town 5 months pre go-live 1 week 

Conduct Data Mapping and Develop Data 

Conversion Routines 

BS&A 5 months pre go-live 1 month 

Conduct Review of Converted Data with 

Town 

BS&A and Town 4 months pre go-live Approx 1 day 

Install Programs BS&A 4 months pre go-live 1 day 

Knowledge Transfer 

Conduct On-site Process Review Meeting BS&A and Town 3 months pre go-live 2 days 

Conduct Analysis of Current Forms BS&A and Town 3 months pre go-live 1 day 

Conduct Review of Required Reports BS&A and Town 3 months pre go-live 1 day 

Conduct Analysis of System Interface 

Requirements 

BS&A and Town 3 months pre go-live 1 day 

Develop Best Practices Recommendation BS&A 3 months pre go-live 1 day 

Approve Recommendations  Town 3 months pre go-live 1 day 

Provide Consulting and Assistance with 

Chart of Account Redesign 

BS&A 3 months pre go-live 1 day 

Create System Specification Document BS&A 3 months pre go-live 3 days 

Implementation 

Create Forms BS&A 0-2 months pre go-live 2 days 

Create Reports BS&A 0-2 months pre go-live 2 days 

222



46 
 
 

Conduct Acceptance Testing Town 0-2 months pre go-live 2 days 

Conduct Final Data Extraction Town 1 week pre go-live 2 days 

Convert Final Data BS&A 1 week pre go-live 2 days 

On-site Set-up for Users and Configuration 

Items 

BS&A 0-1 month pre go-live 4 days 

 

 

Training 

On-site Training  BS&A and Town 0-2 months pre go-live Varies 

Post-Project Activities 

Conduct Post Project Review & Assessment BS&A and Town 1 month post go-live Varies 

Conduct Post Implementation Follow Up 

Training  

BS&A and Town TBD TBD 

 

 

Gantt Chart (example) 
 

  

223



47 
 
 

5.2 Change Control 

 

This subsection describes the Change Control procedure that BS&A Software will use to support the delivery of 

projects. 

 

Figure 3: Change Control Procedure 

 
This diagram shows the Change Control Procedure and activities as follows: 

 Raise change request 

 Assess impact 

 Confirm outcome 

The details of these activities are available in the Project Management Procedures document. 

 

  

A1

Raise Change 
Request

A2

Assess Impact

A3

Confirm Outcome

Change Request

Impact Assessed 

Change Request

Requirement

Change Control 
Procedure

Change 
Request Log

Customer
Implementation 
Project Manager

Reject

Accept

224



48 
 
 

RAID Management 
 

This subsection provides an overview of the RAID Management (Risk, Action, Issue, and Decision) procedures that will 

be used to support the delivery of this project. 

 

ITEM DEFINITION ATTRIBUTES 

Risk Used to describe events that may occur and the 

impact on the project if they occur 

Creation – can be raised at any point during the life of the 

project 

Review – risks will be reviewed at specific times during the 

project 

Lifespan – could remain open for the duration of the project 

Action Used to describe and control the specific tasks 

that are raised at management meetings. 

These tasks are outside of activities listed in the 

Project Plan and Statement of Work. 

Creation – are raised at an appropriate management meeting, 

and can be raised at any point during the life of the project. 

Review – progress towards closure will be reviewed at each 

subsequent instance of the management meeting at which the 

action was raised. 

Lifespan – the expectation is that an action will be closed within 

two iterations of the management meeting at which they were 

raised. 

Issue Used to describe and bring focus to a situation 

where a task on the project plan has not been, or 

cannot be, delivered according to: schedule, 

specification, or budget. 

Creation – can be raised at any point during the life of the 

project. 

Review – progress towards closure will be reviewed at the 

management meeting. 

Lifespan – an issue will remain open until it has been resolved to 

the satisfaction of all concerned. 

Decision Used to describe and record a decision made by 

the project; i.e., the outcome of a change request, 

or the approval of a milestone. 

Creation – can be raised at any point during the life of the 

project. 

Review – decisions are presented to a management meeting that 

has the authority to make those decisions. 

Lifespan – a decision will be open up to the point that when it is 

presented to the meeting, it will be either accepted or rejected (a 

“no-decision” is equal to a rejection). 

 

The details of the RAID Management procedure are available in the Project Management Procedures document. 

 

  

225



49 
 
 

9 Review and approval 
There will be various review points during the project (see Project Schedule Dates) when a review of progress will be marked by 

the confirmation of, and agreement to, specific deliverables.  

 

 

 Statement of Work. At this point, we will ask you to acknowledge that you have received the Statement of Work and 

that it represents the agreed-upon scope of the project. 

 BS&A Database and Conversion Approach. At this point, we will ask you to acknowledge that you have participated 

in the data review and assisted BS&A will identifying conversion/database related issues if any exist. 

 Cutover Complete. At this point, we will ask you to acknowledge that the Implementation Team has provided an 

agreed-upon databases for go-live. 

 Training Complete. At this point, we will ask you to acknowledge that the Training Team has delivered training 

consistent with the Statement of Work, or that some days were left unused and should not be billed. 

 Deployment Complete. Customer will have a maximum of a thirty calendar day “Test Period” to use and test the 

System in in a live production environment after go-live  for and report issues and acknowledge that BS&A has 

provided deliverables consistent with the Statement of Work, and that any outstanding issues. Once issues are 

addressed, or if there are no issues or if issues are minor and transferred to the Support Team. The Customer shall issue 

“Acceptance.” Upon Acceptance of the last Phase of the project, Client shall also grant “Final Acceptance.”  

 

 

 

  

226



10_1d_Exhibit_E_Functional_Requirements

1 of 3

Attachment 10: Functional Requirements

Y

Y-ND

N

I

F

E

S

TPS

NS

NOTE:  All exceptions and assumptions should be listed in Comments Field

Req # Function Process Requirement

Implementation 

Response Support Response Module / System Phase for Go Live Comment 

Additional 

Information for Y-

ND

1 UB Documents System allows attached documents to be stored directly in system Y S Utility Billing 1 X

2 UB Documents

System allows documents to be stored in document management system and referenced in 

ERP *** TPS Utility Billing 1 Can save attachments within Standard Product, but third party integration with Laserfiche provides true document management capabilities.X

3 UB Security System uses role based security where security roles are tied to users Y S BS&A Software 1 X

4 UB Security System uses role based security where security roles are tied to positions N NS BS&A Software 1 X

5 UB Security Security settings can be set for modules Y S BS&A Software 1 X

6 UB Security Security settings can be set for screen or function Y S BS&A Software 1 X

7 UB Security Security settings can be set for field N NS BS&A Software 1 X

8 UB Security Security settings can be set for reports N NS BS&A Software 1 X

9 UB Security Security settings can be set for data (by chart of accounts) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

10 UB Security Security settings can be set to allow user to log in Y S BS&A Software 1 X

11 UB Security Security settings can be set to allow user to add data Y S BS&A Software 1 X

12 UB Security Security settings can be set to allow user to delete data Y S BS&A Software 1 X

13 UB Security Security settings can be set to allow user to change data Y S BS&A Software 1 X

14 UB Security Security settings can be set to allow user to view data Y S BS&A Software 1 X

15 UB Security Security integrates with Microsoft Active Directory for user authentication Y S BS&A Software 1 X

16 UB Workflow Workflow can be routed to users for approval: N NS BS&A Software 1 X

17 UB Workflow Workflow can be routed to roles for approval N NS BS&A Software 1 X

18 UB Workflow Workflow can be routed to positions for approval N NS BS&A Software 1 X

19 UB Workflow Workflow can be routed to requestor's supervisor N NS BS&A Software 1 X

20 UB Workflow Workflow approval can be sequential (person B can't approve before person A) N NS BS&A Software 1 X

21 UB Workflow

Workflow approval can be concurrent (person A and person B can approve at the same time - 

approval from both required) N NS BS&A Software 1 X

22 UB Workflow

Workflow approval can be group approval (approval required from person A or person B -or 

anyone with similar role) N NS BS&A Software 1 X

23 UB Workflow

Workflow approval process can include both reviewer and approver (approver must approve 

requisition to move forward.  Reviewer is notified, but lack of action does not hold up process- 

notify only) N NS BS&A Software 1 X

24 UB Workflow Approver notified of workflow items through email N NS BS&A Software 1 X

25 UB Workflow Approver notified of workflow items through system notification on dashboard N NS BS&A Software 1 X

26 UB Workflow Approver can approve workflow N NS BS&A Software 1 X

27 UB Workflow Approver can deny/reject workflow N NS BS&A Software 1 X

28 UB Workflow Approver can place on hold workflow N NS BS&A Software 1 X

29 UB Workflow Approver can forward workflow approval N NS BS&A Software 1 X

30 UB Workflow Approver can enter notes into approval providing explanation of response N NS BS&A Software 1 X

31 UB Workflow Original requestor can view status of workflow approval path N NS BS&A Software 1 X

32 UB Workflow Notification to requestor via email as requisition moves through milestones N NS BS&A Software 1 X

33 UB Workflow

Workflow approvals can be re-routed to secondary approver without having to re-initiate the 

workflow from the beginning if primary approver is out (example: on vacation, sick) N NS BS&A Software 1 X

34 UB Workflow

Primary approver is out (example: on vacation, sick) primary approver does not respond in pre-

defined period of time N NS BS&A Software 1 X

35 UB Audit

System creates audit log that tracks changes to existing records, new records, and deletions of 

records Y S BS&A Software 1 X

36 UB Audit Audit log tracks user making change, time, date of change Y S BS&A Software 1 X

37 UB Audit Audit log tracks new value and old value for changes Y S BS&A Software 1 X

40 UB Customer Account System tracks customer information for multiple accounts Y S BS&A Software 1 X

41 UB Customer Account System tracks customer owning multiple properties Y S BS&A Software 1 X

42 UB Customer Account System tracks history of customer N NS BS&A Software 1 X

43 UB Customer Account System tracks history of location Y S BS&A Software 1 X

44 UB Customer Account System tracks active/inactive deposit for service on customer Y S BS&A Software 1 X

45 UB Customer Account System refunds deposit upon closing account Y S BS&A Software 1 X

46 UB Customer Account

System supports transfer of service where one account is closed and another opened without 

loss of data on customer history Y S BS&A Software 1 X

47 UB Customer Account System maintains alternate address for customers Y S BS&A Software 1 X

Requirement and Feature Supported by Third Party 

Requirement and Feature Not Supported

IF Y-ND Selected Column J:

Feature Schedule for Future Release in Generally Available Software

Feature Developed as Enhancement for this Project

Column F: Available Responses

Requirement and Feature Supported by Software Developer

Column E: Available Responses

Requirement Met and Proposed (Standard features in the generally available product)

Requirement Met and Proposed (Features that are not offered as a generally available product or require custom development)

Requirement Not Met with Proposal

Need More Information/Discussion 

227



10_1d_Exhibit_E_Functional_Requirements

2 of 3

48 UB Customer Account System identifies time period to send bill to alternate address (example: snow birds) N NS BS&A Software 1 X

49 UB Account Information System tracks account for each service at each location Y S BS&A Software 1 X

50 UB Account Information Accounts support multiple service types Y S BS&A Software 1 X

51 UB Account Information Accounts linked to customer N NS BS&A Software 1 Customers are linked to accounts. X

52 UB Account Information System creates parent/child relationship with accounts/customers (landlord/tenant) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

53 UB Account Information System tracks deposit for service on account Y S BS&A Software 1 X

54 UB Location Information System tracks history of all accounts at location Y S BS&A Software 1 X

55 UB Location Information Location linked to City's GIS for parcel/ property data Y S BS&A Software 1 X

56 UB Location Information System identifies parcel by multiple IDs (old City ID, new City ID, etc.) Y S BS&A Software 1 Previous numbering systems could be stored in user fields.X

57 UB Location Information Location stores service availability information Y S BS&A Software 1 X

61 UB Meter Information System tracks meter inventory Y S BS&A Software 1 X

62 UB Meter Information System tracks meter change-out history Y S BS&A Software 1 X

63 UB General Billing System maintains multiple rate tables that can determine charges by type of service Y S BS&A Software 1 X

64 UB General Billing

System maintains multiple rate tables that can determine charges by type of service type of 

customer (residential / industrial) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

65 UB General Billing System maintains multiple rate tables that can determine charges by consumption Y S BS&A Software 1 X

66 UB General Billing System maintains multiple rate tables that can set flat fee charges Y S BS&A Software 1 X

67 UB General Billing

Rate tables can be set to tiered rate tables with consumption charged at marginal rate for each 

unit of consumption Y S BS&A Software 1 X

68 UB General Billing Rate tables can be set to consumption charged one rate depending on total usage Y S BS&A Software 1 X

69 UB General Billing Rate tables can be set to flat fee (service charge) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

70 UB General Billing Tables can accommodate negative rates Y S BS&A Software 1 X

71 UB General Billing System provides option to consolidate all accounts for customer on one bill Y S BS&A Software 1 X

72 UB General Billing System provide bills monthly for customers Y S BS&A Software 1 X

73 UB General Billing System generates bills on multiple billing cycles Y S BS&A Software 1 X

74 UB General Billing System has option to determine who receives bills (tenant, landlord) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

75 UB General Billing

System has option to determine who receives bills by service type (landlord gets water; tenant 

gets electric) Y S BS&A Software 1 This is possible, but the services would have to be on separate accounts, linked to the same service address.X

76 UB General Billing System generates bill to multiple recipients (tenant gets bill, landlord gets notice) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

77 UB General Billing Third party receives bill instead of account owner Y S BS&A Software 1 X

78 UB General Billing System calculates discount for seniors Y S BS&A Software 1 X

79 UB General Billing System supports budget billing (smoothing bill amount based on annual average) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

80 UB General Billing System supports electronic billing Y S BS&A Software 1 X

81 UB General Billing Email copy of bill to customer Y S BS&A Software 1 X

82 UB General Billing Customer access bill from online portal Y S BS&A Software 1 X

83 UB General Billing System supports estimated billing (monthly billing with bi-monthly meter read) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

84 UB General Billing

System provides option to consolidate some of accounts on single bill while providing separate 

bills for others Y S BS&A Software 1 X

85 UB General Billing System prints bill with consumption amount Y S BS&A Software 1 X

86 UB General Billing System prints bill with  bar code Y S BS&A Software 1 X

87 UB General Billing System prints bill with graphical display of usage Y S BS&A Software 1 X

88 UB General Billing System prints bill with notes / Special Instructions to Customer Y S BS&A Software 1 X

89 UB General Billing System provides capability to print bill from City printer (individual bills on demand) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

90 UB General Billing

System allows City to adjust bill for miscellaneous charges (e.g. turn on/turn off, damaged 

meter, work order costs, leaks, etc.) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

91 UB Collections System provides mail merge templates that use system information to generate customer letters Y S BS&A Software 1 Reports can be formatted to meet mail merge templateX

92 UB Collections System provides file for third party bill printer Y S BS&A Software 1 X

93 UB Collections System automatically applies late penalties to any overdue payments Y S BS&A Software 1 Process has to be initiated by user X

94 UB Collections System generates reminder notices for late payments Y S BS&A Software 1 X

95 UB Collections System provides statement with all outstanding payments and late charges Y S BS&A Software 1 X

96 UB Collections

System supports budget billing where annual estimated charges are identified and bills are 

equalized across months Y S BS&A Software 1 X

97 UB Collections System will automatically maintain a reserve account for level billing enrollees I BS&A Software 1 X

98 UB Collections System generates statement with outstanding charges, penalties/interest Y S BS&A Software 1 X

99 UB Collections System generates statements with consumption history Y S BS&A Software 1 X

100 UB Water Billing Water billed by consumption using tiered rate structure by type of Customer Y S BS&A Software 1 X

101 UB Water Billing Water billed by consumption using tiered rate structure by meter size Y S BS&A Software 1 X

102 UB Water Billing

System accommodates meter reads with different units (some meter read in CCF, others in 

gallons) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

103 UB Water Billing Water billing rates have minimum charge with allowable usage Y S BS&A Software 1 X

104 UB Water Billing System will combine multiple meters for one account Y S BS&A Software 1 X

105 UB Water Billing System supports deduct metering Y S BS&A Software 1 X

106 UB Sewer Billing Tiered rate structure using water consumption Y S BS&A Software 1 X

107 UB Sewer Billing System supports wastewater meter for industrial users Y S BS&A Software 1 X

108 UB Sewer Billing System supports deduct meter (reduce wastewater charge by irrigation use) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

109 UB Sewer Billing System charges administrative fee for deduct meters Y S BS&A Software 1 X

110 UB Storm water Tiered rate structure based on acreage for parcel Y S BS&A Software 1 X

111 UB Storm water System interfaces to GIS for parcel acreage *** X

112 UB Refuse Billing System charges flat fee for residential Y S BS&A Software 1 X

113 UB Refuse Billing System charges flat fee for commercial based on dumpster size Y S BS&A Software 1 X

114 UB Refuse Billing System charges proportion of fee for multiple customers sharing one dumpster Y S BS&A Software 1 X

131 UB Account Close

Ability, as soon as a meter reading is obtained, to calculate a final bill with deposit applied and 

print on printer associated with the workstation. Y S BS&A Software 1 X

228



10_1d_Exhibit_E_Functional_Requirements

3 of 3

132 UB Account Close

Calculates final bills during any cycle, based on the internal system issuance of a turn-off 

service order, or closing/transfer of a customer account. Y S BS&A Software 1 X

133 UB Account Close

Permit off-cycle billing for accounts that have been disconnected in order to get final bills to 

customer as soon as possible. Y S BS&A Software 1 X

134 UB Account Close System applies deposit amount to final bill Y S BS&A Software 1 X

135 UB Account Close System refunds remaining deposit through AP.  System has integrated link to AP. Y S BS&A Software 1 X

136 UB Self Service System allows new customer to complete service application online N NS BS&A Software 1 X

137 UB Self Service System allows customer to upload documents online N NS BS&A Software 1 X

138 UB Self Service System allows customer to provide deposit online N NS BS&A Software 1 X

139 UB Self Service System allows users access online payment portal to view current and past bills Y S BS&A Software 1 X

140 UB Self Service System allows users access online payment portal to review consumption information Y S BS&A Software 1 X

141 UB Self Service System allows users access online payment portal to view payment history Y S BS&A Software 1 X

142 UB Self Service System allows users access online payment portal to make payment Y S BS&A Software 1 X

143 UB Self Service System allows customer to make payment through  credit card Y S BS&A Software 1 X

144 UB Self Service System allows customer to make payment through direct withdrawal from checking account Y TPS BS&A Software 1 X

145 UB Self Service Customer can set up automatic payments on website through bank draft Y TPS BS&A Software 1 X

UB Service Requests Associate service request linked to Utility Billing account number Y S BS&A Software 1 X

146 UB Service Requests System generates service request for turn on/turn off Y S BS&A Software 1 X

UB Service Requests System provides report of customer accounts that have been paid since turn off Y S BS&A Software 1 X

UB Service Requests System generates service request for meter upgrade Y S BS&A Software 1 X

147 UB Service Requests Completion of service request updates utility billing information N NS BS&A Software 1 Account information would not automatically be altered based on the completion of a Work OrderX

148 UB Service Requests System provides mobile access for meter readers and alert crews N NS BS&A Software 1 X

149 UB Centralized Cashiering System records point of sale transactions Y S BS&A Software 1 X

150 UB Centralized Cashiering System records transactions against receivables Y S BS&A Software 1 X

151 UB Centralized Cashiering System allows decentralized collection of payments on any receivable in system Y S BS&A Software 1 X

152 UB Centralized Cashiering System interfaces with utility billing system to upload detailed utility billing invoices Y S BS&A Software 1 X

156 UB Centralized Cashiering

After payment, cashiering system integrates with third party billing system to record payment 

against account I BS&A Software 1 X

157 UB Centralized Cashiering System tracks one central customer file that all invoices are charged against Y S BS&A Software 1 X

158 UB Recording Payments System applies one payment to multiple receivables / point of sale transactions Y S BS&A Software 1 X

159 UB Recording Payments

System allows using multiple payment types to pay for one invoice (example: cash and credit 

card) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

160 UB Recording Payments Prioritize customer payments by different AR types (applies to partial payments also) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

161 UB Recording Payments System allows departments to enter daily deposits into system Y S BS&A Software 1 This would be through Cash Receipting only. X

162 UB Recording Payments

Reversal of receivable  for denied transactions, e.g., bounced checks, denied credit card 

transactions, etc. and automatically add NSF fees to customer's AR balance, with override 

ability Y S BS&A Software 1 X

163 UB Recording Payments

When processing payment, system provides capability to look up the customer master file by 

any value in customer file Y S BS&A Software 1 X

164 UB Recording Payments Apply payments against individual line items on invoice Y S BS&A Software 1 X

165 UB Recording Payments Apply payments to customer and allow system to determine priority order of invoices Y S BS&A Software 1 X

166 UB Recording Payments System supports splitting one transaction type between multiple chart of accounts Y S BS&A Software 1 X

167 UB Recording Payments System generates a receipt to the payee Y S BS&A Software 1 X

168 UB Recording Payments System generates bank deposit slip Y S BS&A Software 1 This would be through Cash Receipting only. X

169 UB Recording Payments Produces report listing total of all transactions processed by  cashier during shift (z-tape report) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

170 UB Web Payments

System allows customers to create an account and make web payments to any receivable in 

the system Y S BS&A Software 1 Customer cannot create an account, but they can make web payments.X

171 UB Recording Payments

System allows customers to create an account and make web payments to other point of sale 

transactions (example: permit applications) Y S BS&A Software 1 Customer cannot create an account, but they can make web payments.X

172 UB Recording Payments System accepts credit cards online Y TPS BS&A Software 1 X

173 UB Recording Payments System accepts direct debit online from checking account Y TPS BS&A Software 1 X

174 UB Recording Payments System allows customers to set up and authorize recurring payments for: X

175 UB Recording Payments The same amount every month (fees) Y TPS BS&A Software 1 X

176 UB Recording Payments Different amounts each month (water bills) Y TPS BS&A Software 1 X

177 UB Customer Overpayment System stores overpayment amount on customer accounts and applies to next bill Y S BS&A Software 1 X

178 UB Customer Overpayment System provides refund to customer account for overpayment through accounts payable Y S BS&A Software 1 X

179 UB Customer Deposit System tracks customer deposits and applies charges to deposit amount Y S BS&A Software 1 X

180 UB Customer Deposit Customer deposits can be applied to customer (available for use on any invoice) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

181 UB Customer Deposit Customer deposits can be applied to account (only available for one type of charge) Y S BS&A Software 1 X

182 UB Customer Deposit System provides bill through accounts receivable if deposit amount is exceeded. I BS&A Software 1 X

229



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: General Consulting Services – Engineering: The Wooten Company. 

Action Requested: Approval of Engineering Services Contract with The Wooten Company. 

Attachment: Engineering Services Agreement. 

Prepared By: Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

In 2012, Council entered into an agreement with The Wooten Company for general consulting services 

related to engineering on a case-by-case basis for smaller projects without a defined scope of work. This 

general services contract is renewed annually. The services provided by The Wooten Company through the 

subject agreement include but are not limited to development plan review. The attached agreement will 

extend the general consulting services contract through June 30, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: Estimated beginning contract amount $25,000. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of contract with The Wooten Company for general 
consulting services. 

 

230



231



232



233



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: August 10, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Knuckleboom Truck Replacement Grant Acceptance. 

Action Requested: Acceptance of Grant in the amount of $77,759.50 from NCDEQ. 

Attachment: Award Letter. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 7/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 8/3/2020 ☒ TM: 8/4/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 8/4/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Town staff applied for a grant for the replacement of its oldest knuckleboom truck in 2019. The truck to be 

replaced is a 2002 with approximately 170,000 miles. This truck is used daily in the collection of debris such 

as limbs, bulk items, and construction debris. Staff budgeted for the full replacement cost of the 

knuckleboom truck in the 2020-2021 fiscal year, with the hopes of receiving this grant which would offset 

approximately 50% of the cost of a replacement vehicle. Staff was notified via email on July 29 that it had 

been awarded the full requested grant amount of $77,759.50, which is approximately 50% of the cost of a 

replacement truck. The grant was awarded to help the Town and State reduce emissions in North Carolina 

by replacing older, less efficient vehicles with high emissions rates with newer, more efficient vehicles which 

produce less emissions. 

Budgetary Impact: The full replacement cost of the knuckleboom truck was included in the approved 
budget. The grant will offset 50% of the cost of the truck saving the Town $77,759.50. 

Recommendation: Acceptance of the grant award. 

 

234



235



236


	20200810_Agendav2
	20200810_Agenda_Packet
	00_20200810_Agenda
	06_1a_PH_Abstract_Merizio_Rezoningv2
	06_1b_Rezoning_Application_Merizio
	06_1c_Rezoning_Map_Merizio
	06_1d_Legal_Description_Merizio_Rezoning
	06_1e_Notice_Letter_Merizio_Rezoning
	06_1f_Notice_Letter_Labels_Merizio_Rezoning
	06_1g_Public_Hearing_Notice_Merizio_Rezoning
	06_1h_Staff_Report_Merizio_Rezoning
	06_2a_PH_Abstract_Shrine_Club_Rezoning_PHv2
	06_2b_Rezoning_App_PC_Shrine_Club
	06_2c_Rezoning_App_Addendum_PC_Shrine_Club
	06_2d_Rezoning_Map_PC_Shrine_Club
	06_2e_Legal_Description_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning
	06_2f_Notice_Letter_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning
	06_2g_Notice_Letter_Labels_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning
	06_2h_Public_Hearing_Notice_Shrine_Club_Rezoning
	06_2i_Staff_Report_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning
	08_1a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	08_1b_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_20200608_Draft
	08_1c_Special_Called_Meeting_Minutes_20200629_Draft
	08_2a_Consent_Abstract_Flood_Damage_Ord_Set_PHv2
	08_2b_Winterville_FDPO_Amendments_Summary
	08_3a_Consent_Abstract_Eli's_Ridge_Annex_Set_PHv2
	08_3b_Annex_Petition_Eli's_Ridge_Phase_1&3
	08_3c_ Annex_Map_Eli's_Ridge_Phase_1&3
	08_3d_Annex_Legal_Description_Eli's_Ridge_Phase_1&3
	08_3e_Cert_of_Suff_Resolution_Eli's_Ridge_Phase_1&3
	08_3f_Draft_Cert_of_Suff_Eli's_Ridge_Phase_1&3
	08_4a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amendment_20-21-1v2
	08_4b_Budget_Amendment_2020-2021-1
	09_1a_Abstract_Anti-Racism_Messagev2
	09_2a_Abstract_Human_Relations_Councilv2
	09_3a_Abstract_Sewer_Rehab_Eng_Contractv2
	09_3b_Rivers_Engineering_Services_Agreement
	09_4a_Abstract_Milton_Drive_Change_Orderv2
	10_1a_New_Abstract_BSA_Contractv2
	10_1b_BS&A_Software_Agreement_all
	10_1b_BS&A_Software_License_&_Services_Agreement
	10_1c_Exhibit_D_SOW
	10_1d_Exhibit_E_Functional_Requirements

	10_2a_New_Abstract_Wooten_Task_Order_No._30v2
	10_2b_Wooten_General_Consulting_20200701_Task_Order_No._30
	10_3a_New_Abstract_Knuckleboom_Grant_Acceptv2
	10_3b_Knuckleboom_Award_Letter_20200727




